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President's
Letter

Dear Friends of Clemson:

Clemson University is committed to providing a high quality academic experience for young people, with
priority to South Carolinians, and to helping meet the needs of the state’s families, communities, and businesses and
industries through research and public service.

Although we are not exempt from the financial pressures facing many institutions across the country, Clemson
is making considerable progress by increasing administrative efficiencies, setting priorities, and focusing on core
strengths. Signs of improvement in the quality of the Clemson experience are abundant.

We are hiring and retaining outstanding young faculty, and we continue to attract an equally impressive
student body.

We have identified eight emphasis areas in which we plan to build nationally prominent programs, and
these emphasis areas are directly aligned with South Carolina’s industrial sectors and economic development
needs.

‘We have renovated many academic facilities and laboratories, increased the number of “smart” classrooms,
and just reopened a newly renovated student recreation and wellness center.

This progress is recognized by those who “rank” universities. U.S. News and World Report ranks Clemson
35" among all public doctoral universities, while Kiplinger’s Magazine ranks us 20™.

This report will show that, despite budget pressures, Clemson University continues to fulfill its mission and
obligation to the people of South Carolina and make significant progress toward becoming one of the nation’s best
public universities.

James F. Barker, FATIA
Presi\lenf
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University Goals

e Academics, research and service

¥ Excel in teaching, at both the undergraduate and graduate levels.

» Increase research and sponsored programs to exceed $100 million a year in research support.

¥ Set the standard in public service for land-grant universities by engaging the whole campus in service and outreach,
including a focus on strategic emphasis areas.

¥ Foster Clemson’s academic reputation through strong academic programs, mission-oriented research and academic
centers of excellence, relevant public service and highly regarded faculty and staff.

¥ Seek and cultivate areas where teaching, research and service overlap.

e Campus life

>  Strengthen our sense of community and increase our diversity.

» Recognize and appreciate Clemson’s distinctiveness.

»  Create greater awareness of international programs and increase activity in this area.

» Increase our focus on collaboration.

»  Maintain an environment that is healthy, safe and attractive.

e Student performance

»  Attract more students who are ranked in the top 10 percent of their high school classes and who perform
exceptionally well on the SAT/ACT.

> Promote high praduation rates through increasing freshman retention, meeting expectations of high achievers and
providing support systems for all students.

» Promote excellence in advising.

» Increase the annual number of doctoral graduates to the level of a top-20 public research university.

# Improve the national competitiveness of graduate student admissions and financial aid.

e Educational resources

YVVVYY
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Successfully complete our capital campaign and a subsequent one.

Rededicate our energy and resources to improving the library.

Increase faculty compensation to a level competitive with top-20 public universities.

Increase academic expenditures per student to a level competitive with top-20 public universities,
Manage enrollment to ensure the highest quality classroom experiences.

mson’s national reputation

Promote high integrity and professional demeanor among all members of the University community.

Establish a Phi Beta Kappa chapter.

Have at least two Clemson students win Rhodes Scholarships.

Send student ensembles to perform at Camegie Hall.

Have at least two Clemson faculty win recognition by national academies.

Publicize both national and international accomplishments of faculty, staff and students.

While maintaining full compliance, achieve notable recognition with another national football championship, two
championships in Olympic sports and two Final Four appearances in basketball.

NTN
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UNIV

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
September 15,2003

To President Barker,
Members of the Board of Trustees, and
Citizens of South Carolina

We are pleased to present to you the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of Clemson University for the year
ended June 30, 2003. The audit report of our auditors, KPMG
LLP, appears in the Financial Section, and expresses an
unqualified opinion on the University’s financial statements.

INTRODUCTION

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes the
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2003, and
other information useful to those we serve and to those to
whom we are accountable. Responsibility for the accuracy of
the information and for the completeness and fairness of its
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the University. We believe the information is
accurate in all material respects and fairly presents the
University’s financial position, as well as revenues, expenses,
changes in net assets and cash flows.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes all
disclosures necessary for the reader of this report to gain a
broad understanding of the University’s operations for the year
ended June 30, 2003. The report is organized into three
sections.

The Introduciery Section includes the transmittal letter,
a University overview and the Certificate of Achievement of
Excellence in reporting awarded to the University for the year
ended June 30, 2002. Also included is a listing of the University
Board of Trustees and an organization chart. This section is
intended to acquaint the reader with the organization, structure
and scope of operations of the University.

The Financial Section presents the basic financial
statements, management’s discussion and analysis and the
report of the independent external anditors. The basic financial
statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted

\SITY

accounting principles for public colleges and universities, as
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

The Statistical Section contains selected financial,
statistical, and demographic information. This information is
intended to present to readers a broad overview of trends in
the financial affairs of the University.

Clemson University was established in 1889 in accordance
with the will of Thomas Green Clemson and the Acceptance
Act of the General Assembly of South Carolina. Clemson
University is governed by a board of thirteen members,
including six elected by the State General Assembly and seven
appointed self-perpetuating life members. Clemson University
operates as a unit of the State of South Carolina (the primary
government) as a state assisted institution of higher
education.

Clemson University is promoted and supported through
activities of other affiliated entities, the Clemson University
Foundation and the Clemson University Research Foundation.
These separately chartered entities’ activities are governed
by their Boards of Directors. These entities are not included
in the financial statements, but their financial relationship is
discussed in the footnotes to the financial statements. The
financial statements for these entities are available in their
respective offices or may be obtained from the University
Comptroller’s Office.

In previous years the Clemson Research Facilities
Corporation (CRFC) was identified as a component unit and
presented in a discrete column of the financial statements.
Upon further review of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the
University decided that CRFC does not meet the criteria for
inclusion and should no longer be included in the reporting
entity.

FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

Chief Business Officer

G-06 Sikes Hall Box 345301 Clemsan, SC 29634-5301

864.656.2420 FAX 864.656.2008
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

In 2001, Clemson University adopted a set of ten year
goals aimed at making the school one of the nation’s best public
universities. Despite substantial state budget cuts since then,
Clemson remains committed to improving the quality of its
academic, research and public service programs.

In fact, 2002-2003 saw significant gains in financial
support from the Legislature, private donors, and research
partners.,

The South Carolina General Assembly demonstrated its
support for Clemson and its sister research universities through
three measures:

e The Research Centers of Excellence Act, which set
aside $30 million in lottery funding for endowed
chairs in areas related to economic development and
has provided $15 million for Clemson programs;

e The Eccnomic Development Incentive Bond Act,
which will provide $25 million for a new graduate
engineering center that is tied to the expansion of
one of the state’s leading employers, BMW
Manufacturing of South Carolina;

e Legislation to provide regulatory relief and research
infrastructure funding, which was approved in the
House of Representatives and will be considered by
the Senate in 2004,

Recent months also have brought some of Clemson’s

‘largest and most significant private gifts and research grants,
inchiding:

e $10 miltion from BMW to provide required matching
funds for lottery endowed chairs in automotive
engineering;

o 310 million from Darla Moore and Richard
Rainwater to endow and expand programs in the
School of Education, now named for Ms. Moore’s
father, Eugene T. Moore;

e $6.9 million from John W. Walker to endow and name
the School of Economics;

e 57 million in external research funding from federal
grants and contracts for the Clemson University
Genomics Institute;

»  $5.7 million in external research funding for the
Center for Optical Materials Science and Engineering
Technologies, which is helping South Carolina build
a photonics industry cluster.

In 2002 and 2003, Clemson continued to refine and
expand its academic plan by identifying eight emphasis areas
in which the university intends to build nationally recognized
programs. Emphasis areas were selected because of existing
faculty sirength and interest, opportunities for external funding,
and alignment with South Carolina’s economic development
needs. The eight areas are:

o Advanced Materials

*  Automotive and Transportation Technology

*  Biotechnology and Biomedical Science

»  Family and Community Living

e  General Education

o  Information and Communications Technology

s Leadership and Entrepreneurship

»  Sustainable Environment

Signs of improving quality at Clemson are readily
apparent. The university’s accreditation with the Southern
Association of Schools and Colleges was reaffirmed with no
required follow-up and twe commendations. Clemson is
attracting cutstanding young faculty, many of whom have
recently received such prestigious awards as National Science
Foundation Career Awards, Guggenheim and Fulbright
Fellowships, and awards from the National Endowment for
the Humanities.

The student body is equally impressive. The freshman
class has an average SAT over 1200. Of the 29 graduates of
the Governor’s School of Math and Science who are attending
college in state, 20 will be studying at Clemson. Last year,
three Clemson students earned Goldwater Scholarships. The
most an institution can win in a single vear is four.

Facilities projects under way or recently completed include
renovations to historic Fort Hilt (the former home of John C.
Calhoun and founder Thomas Green Clemson), Advanced
Materials Research Lab, Hardin Hall, and Fike Student
Wellness and Recreation Center, construction of an addition
to McAdams Hall to house Computer Science, as well as
enhancements to athletics facilities such as Littlejohn
Coliseum, Kingsmore Baseball Stadium, a new indoor track
facility, and Clemson Memorial Stadium.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Control Structure and Budgetary Control

The Financial Affairs Division of the University is
responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective
structure of intemal control. The structure of internal control
is designed to ensure that certain organizational objectives
are met. Accordingly, organizational structure, policies, and
procedures have been established to safeguard assets, ensure
the reliability of accounting data, promote efficient operations,
and ensure compliance with established governmental laws,
regulations and policies, University policies, and other
requirements of sponsors to whom the University is
accountable.

As arecipient of federal financial awards, the University
is responsible for ensuring compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations relating to such assistance. A combination of
State and University policies and procedures, integrated with
the University’s structure of internal controls, provides for
this compliance. The University has an annual single audit
performed in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133.

The State Budget and Control Board requires the
University to submit an annual balanced budget for both its
Educational and General and Extension and Public Service
components. Each recognized college or budget center of the

~9~



University is provided with a level of appropriation. This
appropriation limits total annual expenditures. Budgetary
controls are incorporated into both the University’s
accounting system and the State’s financial management
system to ensure that imposed expenditure constraints are
observed. Pericdic financial reports comparing actal results
with budgeted amounts are provided at both the University
and State level.

Debt Administration

The University has developed a comprehensive debt
management strategy to provide guidelines relative to
acceptable levels of debt and to formulate a mechanism for
calculating and monitoring debt while being cognizant of the
effect of long-term borrowing on the University’s credit rating.
This strategy acknowledges that, although all University
revenues are generally available to meet any need, debt issued
for one operational segment should be repaid from the
resources generated by that segment.

Cash Management

State law requires that substantially all of the University’s
receipts and disbursements be made using bank accounts in
the name of the South Carolina State Treasurer. The State
Treasurer performs almost all cash management activities for
University cash balances on deposit in state bank accounts.
As a participant in the State’s cash management pool, the
University does receive investment income allocations for
certain qualifying cash balances.

Risk Management

The University participates in a statewide risk
management program under which the State assumes
substantially all risks for unemplovment and workers’
compensation benefits and claims of covered employees for
health, dental, and group-life insurance benefits. In addition,
the University pays preminms to the State’s Insurance Reserve
Fund to cover the risk of loss related to the following assets
and activities: real property, its contents, and other equipment,
motor vehicles and aircraft, general tort claims, and medical
malpractice claims. The University also obtains employee
fidelity bond insurance coverage for all employees through a
commercial insurer for lesses arising from theft or
misappropriation. The University believes that all coverage
15 sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses.

OTHER INFORMATION
Audits

State law, federal guidelines, and certain bond
convenants require that the University’s accounting and
financial records be audited each year. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003, the State Auditor contracted with the
independent certified public accounting firm of KPMG LLP,

to perform the University’s annuai andit. Under the terms of
this contract, KPMG LLP will perform the audit of the
University’s financial statements and the University’s federal
financial assistance programs for the next three years.
Additionally, Clemson University internal auditors perform
fiscal, compliance, and performance audits. The reports
resulting from these audits are shared with you, the Board of
Trustees, and the University's management.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Clemson
University for its comprehensive annual financial report for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state
and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR),
whose contents conform to program standards. Such a CAFR
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one
year only. Clemson University has received the Certificate of
Achievement annually since the fiscal year ended June 30,
1993. We believe our current report continues to conform to
the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we
are submitting it to the GFOA.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report in a timely manner would not have been possible
without the coordinated efforts of the Comptrollers Office and
other University financial staff. Each member has our sincere
appreciation for their contributions in the preparation of the
report.

Sincerely,

& Bty

Scott Ludlow
Chief Business Officer
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Clemson University,
South Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2002

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

AT

President

Bty

Executive Director
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".~.-53 Beattie Place | :
_.Grc::nvnlle SC 29601—2106

o Indgg cnﬂcf]t Aiditors’ R@o_n':j-:._ ;

: Mr Tbomns L Wagner Jr., CPA
“:State Auditor - :
. Srate of Sauth Carolina
) Co]umbla South Caro]ma

.:-We have audztcd [he nccumpan:nng bas:c ﬁnancml statements of Cicmson Umversuy (Lhe._:' :
 University}, 2 depanmenr of the State of South Caroling, as_ of .'md for the year ended June 30,

i 2003, ‘as listed 1 the table of contents. These financial statements arc the responsublhty of the L

"Umversuys management Our responsxb:htv xs 10 cxpress an oplmcm on thesc fi nancml
_-slatameulsbas»don our. audﬂ ~ . . -

e We conducted our audit i m accordancc with audltmg standﬁrds gencmlly accepled in m&. Umlc

© States of America and the standards applicable to ﬁnmcml audits .contained .in Government "
- Auditing - Srrmdards, issued by the Complroﬂer General of the Unned States. Those standards

. ‘Tequire that we. plan and perform the audit to. obtain reasonable assurance ‘about whether the -
*financial statements are free of matenal misstaternent. -An audit mcludes ‘eXamining, on'a test
“basis, evidence supporting the amounts dnd disclosures in. the financial statements. ‘An audit nlso_
s mcludcq nssessing the accounting principles. used and significant estimates made by munagement,
--as well as evaluating the overall financial statemem prcsentauon We behcve 1bat our audlt

Ey provrdhs a redsonable basis for our opmiun

As dlscussul in nore E 1he ﬁmmc:a[ statemcms of C‘ E{:mson Um\ Lr‘it[\f are lﬂ[Bnde 10 pn.sml the L

financial position, results of operations.and the cash flows of proprietary fund types of only (that- -
““portion of the financial reporting -cntity of 1he State of South Carolina lhd[ is artributable 10 the
transactions of - Clemson University. | They do not purpont ‘to, and do not, present fairlv ' the

: financial _position” of the State of South Carolina as of june 30, 2003, and the’ Chdnggs inies L

o *financtal position and its cash flows, where applicable, for the year then énded i n conformuv wuh
. ’accomumn prmmplcs generally acccpted in th Lmlcd States o{ Amem.d ' :

v _ln our opmmn Lhe hnaﬂcml stasemems refem:d 1o abow: prcaem faxrly in a[] md[r_nn} rc'-:ps.u%
the financial position of Clemson’ Umversxry, 2s.of June 30, 2003; and the changes in financial ©
‘positon and cash flows thereof for the year then ended jn Loﬂfbrmny mth Aaccounting prmmpla S
: gcncrallv accepted in the Umted Statcs of Amen(,a . 2

“In a&.cmddncc mth Guvernnw.ur Audnmg Srcmda:a’s we ha\.e alqo tbsucd @ n.pon datcd

) .'SCptcmher 12,2003 on our consideration of the Umwrsm s intemal control over ‘financial S
" reporting and on our tests of its comphaslce ‘with certain prov isions of laws, regulations, contracts
- and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accnrthmce with Governmens

e | ua‘mng Srmzdai o3 dnd sbould be rcad in C()!’I_] unction wuh thls repart in conmdenm thc rcsults of o
‘eur audit. : : . : oo .

HH ka!!r.l?U'MGLPIL.SL E
R . 3 mamber o KPMG Jotmma
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o express o opmmn on 1t

X Thc management 5 d:scussmn and analysrs is ot a reqmred part cf the basic ﬁnancxa] statementsfi'

O butis supplementary information reqmred by accountmg principles. generally accepted in the: Ll

" United: States. of America, We have: app];ed certain - limited: procedures, * which cons]gicd_'_'_ FRRERA

i _"pnnmpa!ly of inquiries- of manageément regarding the methods of measurément and presentauon'f L

of the required supplementary mfcrmat[on However we dld nat audn the mformahon and_

R Our aud:t was conducted for the purpose of formmﬂ an opmmn o the basn: f'mancml sialemcnts CERRE T
...+ of : the: University: .The mtroductory -and “statistical sections; are presented for purposes of o

~additional analysis and are not a reqmred part of the basic ﬁnanc;al statements. These sections.
" have not becn subgected to the: audmng procedures ‘applied by us in Lhe audjt of the bassr: ﬁnanczal
statemcnts and, accordmgty, we express no opmmn on them g
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o 0verv:ew of the Fm_anc:a! Statements and

: UJVAUJ’.._U..(LU; o

7 ,"--'--_'_MANAG EMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
_ANALYSIS

* Financial Analysis

_ Clemson Unlversny is pleased to present its ﬁnancml R
_statements for fiscal ‘year 2003.. While - audited financial

o statements. for fiscal year 2002 are not, presented with this -
" “report, condensed operatlons and financial position data- will

~“be presented in this section in orderto 1]lusnate certain increases

o _these statements will be on current year data
" There are three fi nancial statements presented

‘ _._:smnlar to that used by prtvate corporations §

2 This discussion and analysis of the University’s fi nancml :
M statements prov1des an overv1ew of its ﬁnane1al aetmtles for
' -__:'the year : : : : SIS

g Statement of Net Assets _ : - :
' The Statement of NetAssets presents the assets ltabllltles
-and net assets of the UnwerSIty as of the end of the fiscal year.

. A the - :.l

Statement of Net Assets; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in NetAssets and, the Statement of Cash Flows. -
 These statements present ﬁnancml mfonnat}on in a, format

' '-'prowded the semce) and NetAssets (Assets mmus Llabllmes) 3
Tt s prepared under the accrual basis of accountlng, where - _
“ - revenues and assets are reeogmzed when the service is provn:led S

. and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide

©'the service to us, regardless of when cash is exchanged
* - .From the data presented; readers of the Statement of Net
' _.Assets are able to determine the assets avallable to continue -
. the operations of the institution. They are also ableto determine, .
“how much the institution owes vendors, mvestors and lendmg'_ o

" institutions. Fmally, ‘the Stafement of Net Assets providesa - -

. and decreases. However, the emphas1s of dlscussmns about  picture of the net assets (asscts minus liabilities) and thexr e

- availability for expenditure by the institution.

'-ﬁrst category, 1nvested in capital assets, net of debt, provades

© . the institution sequltymproperty plant and equipment owned L

by the institytion, The next asset category is restricted net .’
. assels, ‘which is dmded 1nto tWo categories, nonexpendable :

. :_and expendab]e Restricted nonexpendable net assets consists .
- solely of the University’s permanent endowment ﬁmds andare. .-

o only available for investment purposes. Expendab]e restricted - :

i “-__net assets are available for expenditure by the institution but "~

* .- must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or

- external entities that have placed time or purpose restrictions .0
“on the use of the assets. The final category is unrestricted net . P

i The Statement of Net Assets is a point of time financial .. assels. Unrestncted net assets are available to the institution .

3'statement ‘The. purpose of the Statement of Net Assets is to

. presem to the readers of the financial statements a fiscal .
"_snapshot of Clemson Umvemty The Statemenl of Net Assets’ :

o o presents end-of- year data coricerning Assets (property that we
7 own and what we are owed by others), Liabilities (what we . -

“*for any lawful purpose of the institution. Although unrestricted - e

“net assets are not subject to externally imposed stipulations, "
- subslantlally all of the Umvers:ty § unrestricted net assets have .

‘been designated for various acadermc and research proarams -

and mmauves

owe 1o o_thers_and have collected from others before we h_ave' R

o Assets R

“ Curreni assels |

- Capital assets, net

: OIller assets ) S
Tul.tl \sscts S

C 'Lluhlhtles »
- Currend Liabitities” - )
" Noncurtent Liabilities - 27
. Tol Liabilities P

-"Nel Assets R -
207 Invested in eapital asst:l'i nel of tlt.l]l:" B
Restricted - expendable -
- Restricted - nont\pendahle y
: Unrt.s!r]ctt.d :

Tnl.il Nl:t Assels L

Condensed Summary of Net Assets (thousands of dollars)

PRI O Increasei " “Percent
L2003 2002 (Decrease) ~ Change .
(5 163,617 - § 155,689 :_ C$ 7928 . E09%.
375032 337,184 38R LSS
76,861 SP3.255 N 3,606 o 482
616410 566,058 L 50352 BA0% - .
5368 TERO09 T BSA) U S1A%-
CU123,825 0 90AST i 33,368 Y L 36.89%
189,193 01159366 29827 .0 o 18T2%
256238 U 2S51ETe o U 36R2 Y 146%
109161~ 101,223 507,938 o 784% -
CeIIG 0223 s 005%
52,570 0 CA36T0 L UB900 T U2038%
§ 4272175 406,692 T § 20,525 . 505%

Net asséts are divided into three major. categories. The
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- Total asscts ol' thc'.Unm,rsrty mcreascd by ‘l:SO ’%"Ef-_" -_._he classr,‘oed as: nonopemtmu rt.w,naes The utrluatron of iong-i

~ “million. Net capital assets contributed ‘HS 8 wmillion -~ lived assets, referred to'as Capital Assets, i$ reflected fnthe * 0 L
"+ of this amount led by a $32.3 million increase in = "ﬁnancmlstatements as dcprccmtion whlch amortlzes the cost' R,
.. " Buildings and Construction in Progress and a'$4.2., '.of an agset over ils expected useful fife; ol cnen i

. ‘million i 1ncreasem Utll]tles and Othér Non: Structural"-’ L Chanues in totaE net assets as prcsentcd on the Statement’3 : SE

T lmprovcmcnts Twd items contribited: to the $7.9° " ;-"of Net Assets are based on the activity presented inthe "o

Statcment of Reventies; Expenses and Charniges.in Net Assets:..
o _.The purpose of the statémert is toprescnt therevenues received L
*"-‘-_'because of three bond issises; two_of which oecirred by the institution, both operating. and nonoperatmg, and.the

~late in the fi scal year. Also, prepard cxpenscs were_;'- --expenses pald by the institution, opcratmU and. nonoperamng,'--'__'
Cup $1.3 mtlllon due to ‘prepayment oflibrary. “ .- and any other. revenues, expenses, gains and losSes recerved L
' .'-_'penodtcals betore t'scal year end.. The $3.6 million: .~ T_-_or spent by the;nstrtunon-_l..__ PR - S
# - increéasein Other asscts slcmmed l"rom 1ncreases in ST Generally speakl operatmcr revenues are recexved lor" :
o endOWment ﬂdts and student loan repayments : provndmg goods and services to the’ various’ customers and % B T
' ot '_constltuencres of the tnstttut:on Operatincr expenses are those. FRpe
" expenses paid o acquire or produce the goods and: servrces_'- o

_rmlhon incréase. in’ current: assets Cdsh balances: ;
* increased $6.3 million i rom the prev1ous year mainly

: Current habli:t]es_decreased by ‘}:3 5 ml“lO

Accounts and retalnage pdyables were actunlly down S prov1ded in retutn for the Operath revenues, and to carry out’
Ls6, 9 mllhon due toa clecrease n payables for’ ma;orf = ___"-the mission of the- institution; . Nonopcratmo reyenues are. S
Sh constrtiction pro1ects, most of which were completed. U feyenues: recewed for whlch goods and ‘services are not.." - | S
~ " land placed into service durmg thie current fiscal year: provrded State capital appropnahons and- caprtal grants and ok
' This decltne was offset by increases ofapproxnmatelyiﬂ-:_ i -"-ﬂtfts are consrdered neithet” ‘operating ‘nor nonoperatmg i

N Y million each in delerred fevenues,: accrued'x < Tevenues dnd are reportcd after“Income bcl‘orc otherrevenues e
" ‘payroll and related liabilities, and the current portion, S expcnses gains or losses.™ T AR
- of bonds payablc “The dcl’errcd reVENUES increase, " - o The. Condensed Statcmcnt of Revenucs Expenses and-_'_i s
: ‘was prtmartiy attnbutable ta an mcrease in student S Changcsm NetAssets reflects’ apos:ttve year thh an tnereaseii_-- TN
o ."Prcpa)/ments for the sccond summer session and fall -~ in'Net Assets at the cnd of the” year.: Some htOthhts of thc.' R
-+ semesteryand an mcrease in: foatball llLkL[b purchascd_i B 'ml’ormatwn presented on t]}lS Statement areas. follows .
e for. the fall, 2004 season. - The increase in accrued . G
* payroll and relatcd Tiabilities was attr;butable toan
~additional da}r s salary accrual compared to. the"-‘
prcv1ous year, i L : : '

-_Operatmg feveries mcrcased &'%9 6 rmlhon for the
'f_]t"scal year endrng June ’3(} 2003. Student tuttlon'- SR
Sirand lee; TEVENUES mcreased 'l»lil rmlhon, the dtrect
7 Uresult gf a Board-approved. 14.6- percent increase. . .-
iy designed to partt‘tlly offset state appropnatton budgct IR
o ¢uts, The: grants and contracts TEVENUES Increase: ot-:_.'-
R $22: 4 m:lhon was drlvcn by state and t‘cdt,ral sourccs LA
G e : T A6 pcrcent incréase in state grants aod contracts
: --«'Although each category of th Asst,ts mcreased SRR &:"-"revcnue wais due. to’ lotlcry—l‘unded increases in the_;
*during the ﬁscal year ending Tune 30, 200’% mcreases' e Palmetto and LIFE scholarsh! ps, and the addition of
i._'.g'_m Rt_stnctcd expcndable and Unrestricted netassets ™~ -+ * “the new HOPE scholarsh]p A22 percent mcrease_':. ERCR A
* . accounted for the bulk'of the $20.5 mtlllon increase: i federal]y funded research’ rcvenues is the direct = o
- The $7; 9mllllon1ncrease in Restricted — expendable - *result-of the University initiative to grow research' o
e .j'net assets iy attrtbutable to bond procceds Teserved- and attract cxtcmal fundmg to offset recent state
- for: spemftc capttal pro;ects The. $8.9 million 50 approprtatlon dccltnes ; ;

_mcrcase in unrestricted net assets resulted from the ol R L

decllne 1n accounts payab]e at tlscal ycar “end;. and-f"- ‘
.- increases ofapproxlmately ‘ll I mtllton m auxrllary..i. -
-'“fnct assct balanccs e L Ry

s Three new bond lssues dtscussed in detall m-Note 6 :
O the l”nancml statt,ments were rcsponsd:tle for the o
S ‘B’lB 4 mtlllOI'l mcrease m Noncurrentltabllrt:cs

-;Operattng expen' 5 crcast.d Sﬂl 7 milli n'.'for the
'_"_'ﬁscal year endma June 30, 2003 Expenscs for
. compensation’ and employee beneﬁts were up-$12°7
~million. Desptte two mld—year state budgctcuts theﬂ:‘ Lt
&0 University adhered. to its “Academic Road: Map”. -
_Consequently, l‘aculty salanes accounted for $4. 9

.:'.'_-"_-*'Statement of F{evenues, Expenses ‘ :
o and Changes in Net Assets - rnrlllon of this { increaseé: 'I'emporary and pnrt-ome_- P
e TheStaternentofRevenues ExpensesandChannes mNet- B wages’ 1ncreased 5‘2  ‘million; reﬂccttng the- Ry
e Assets presents the revenues carned and expenses incurred ':I’Eluclance or inability, (o fill vacant positions with'

" “during the year Actwlttes are reported as either operatingor full-time, salaried '“d“"d“‘ﬂb Increased 5“—'(]‘4“1."- :
. non- operalmU All lhmns bem0 ‘equal;a pubhc UmverSIty gy lumon ﬂ“d fees resuited ma ‘l"q’ ml“")“ increase’in. - :
e "dependcncy on state ‘zid and gifts: will tesult in operating. 1 _':graduate assistant waivers. Incréased premiums for
'_-E.fdcf' icits, The GASB reqmres state approprnttons and gltts to - i :.“Bmployee health insurance were: attnbutablc for th =




. Grants and Contracis:

_UNAUDITED -

" TOTALREVENUES BY SOURCE -

S'ate_',.' and Ser:ie¢_~___ ) :
Educational - Tt

Yippe. . Galesand Services . o T

Nongbvémmental [ ., - Auilargs, pet. . - Other Operating Ravanues .

1%

Locas Gr_ants end.
Contracts - 0.3%

i Stale.Grants ; ENUES
and Conlracts Aey = L
- 38 5% R
6.0% g . Stale
-Apprapriations -
LTene% o
Federal Grants E
andéug:{:ncls ‘Federal
o ~Appropiiations
' 24%
Noncaphal Gits. .~ .~ .-
- 2SS
o 4B%. . "
" \hvestnmnl .
ST e ce hcoma
: . Student Tultion . A%
and;;eﬂe; et - Othar Nanopsrating
e " Revenuss .

remamder of the compensauon and employee‘f

s benef"rts increase.

= Servi_ces ant}. supplies expenses. increased $15.8

million for the year. ' More than one-half of this

*+increase, $8.8 million, was attributable to increases

" in.campus maintenance, renovation and non-
h capttahzed deferred maintenance costs. Convertmg N
L campus space for research labs andmstalhng wireless

networking capability were two of these pnorltres

“Incredses in sponsored projects directly resultedina
'$% 7 million-increase in public service and research_'
- services and supphes ‘Academic support costs -
* increased $1.4 millicn this past year due to increased -
“library acquisitions and upgrades to hardware,f N

software and network servers

: Savings resultinufrorn previous year upgrades and a
- ."'renegotratzon of the campus coal contract fora =
. savings of 12 percent less restlted in 3.9 percent
_decreasein campus utilities costs for the year endrno p

. .: June 30 2003

' .Deprecmtron expense 1ncreascd $3 2 mllllon from

", the previous year Almost. $90 million in new.
- “buildings were placed in service this past year,
;"'resultlng in a $‘7 4 mrlllon rncrease in deprecmtron o
o _".expense '

The Board mandaled 14, 6 percent student tumon and;' ' _ _: '

" fees increase was directly respons:ble for the $1 1
o .mcrease in scholarshlps and fe]lowshlps expenses

o

i Nonoperatrng revenues declmed $78 mllhon for the
“year ending June 30, 2003. Permanent culs from ihe
-"'prevtous year, plus ! two mid- -year reductions totaling -

-+ 8.73 percent, resulted in.a $15.8 million decrease in -

state approprmtlons A land sale the previous fiscal -

o year ylelded $13.5 million. Lack of a_ similar - o
:transactlon of this magnitude resulied in‘an overall.: :

decline of 513.7 million in gain ar losses on the

- disposal/sale of capital ‘assets. An increase in
“investment income of $4.5 million offset a decline "
~in glfts of $3.7 million. - The investment income .

B ;ncrease was attributable to fair market value"

- increases in.investments. held by the State Treasurer

~forthe University and'in the value ofamounts loaned -
" tothe Clemson Umversny Foundation. The declme B
~in-gifts is attributable ‘to severdl factors; The "
~ University’s capltal campalnn ended in ﬁscal year . -
- 2002, resulting in an increase in contr:butlons _
‘receivable and gifts’ earmarked for capital projects.’ - -

' Payments of ‘these: pledues and Testricted capital

conlrlbutions resulted in-the marked lncrease in

" capital prants discussed below, butylelded the HH 7 _j -
g mrllron dechne in unrestncted glfts : :

: 'Capita] grants and appropriations inoreaSed $2:4 0 &
. million for the year ending June 30, 2003. A$19.
-million decrease in capital 1mprnvement bond. "

L :proeeeds from the State was offset by a $4.3 million - "

~“increase in gifts earmarked for capital pro_]ects and
o federal capltal equrpment gmntsr _



UNAUDITED.

:::'_ Condensed Summary of Revenues Expenses i
and Changes ln Net Assets (rhousands ofdouars)

S T lncrease:r Pe:rcéh_t'-.'._
20030 0 2002 (Decrease) Chah'ge-_.'

LT 'Gpi:l"_ating"t{e:v'em..lesi'_'
.- Student tuition and fees.
Sales and services. -

CE HLME s 97,269.‘;_:. ol
'8 : 69,724 67,639 2.085 . . 308
© 4 Grants and-contracts 103304000 80866 - 22438 27.05%
. Olhcropemtang revenues- | . ; RETI, S13204 0 o BLIS60 0 T 1,048 0 B62%e
“Total opetating ruvenues el e R T D RTR T 0579300 30,648 1 IS8T
Opemhng Expenses: - Ly T T
It b Compensation and emp[c:yee benef“!s T D304,259 0 292 T L U {Z 01 411%
" - Services and supphes e T e 00 108,33 IS TTR L 1A ST
o Utilites e S T e T L T ], 54D SU2006 e (464 (3.86)%
. Depreciation . "t 0 SR S 22359 o 191580 3,200 0 T 16T
: SChD]dl‘Shlp‘i ‘and fel[ewshlps [ P ) DO0238 o 9090 0 T LI4R 63% v
To[aloperaungexpenses L I T A70 AR 440,823 ¢ 31,675 7,195
“Operating loss - 0 o Lo (700 Ry 7B (4.36)%
Nonoperating Revcnues (E\"pcnses) IR B SRER LI DR k LA
- State apprepnatmns IS LI A :._ L 1?9 6]5 co 7 185433 5T (15 838)=,_ S Uo9e:
.. Federal appmpnatlons FE R S TR : SI492 0 9 L0 TTG0%
U Gifts L T S T 6,892, (A660) T (136135
e Investeent fncome L BTl e e S 56T 45330 T BOTO%
- Gain/(loss) on dlspﬂsal nfcapllal assels L T(L094y T 126200 L (13715) . (108.67)%
.+ Interestexpense’ ;o Dl A (AR (4,300) T (,020) s 23745
Other nonoperating rcvcnues/cxpf_nses ; o ' ST L3 T e 185gh
170209 207189 CT@IS60) (1349

. Tﬂtal m)rlc)pf:ratmu revcnucs (cxpcnses)
- Iheomle before other revenues, cxpenses L
specm} and extmurdmary nems zmd Lrnnsferh v

d0e e ”4,296 s, 937)" (BRI
U645 L 14346 ..‘-.399 S e
20 Tt 238T0 UL (215) 0 (91A49Y
Transﬁ:rs {o state geneml fund e (549)'.3 0t (418) S(I31) AT 3340
ChungemNetAssets Ll e 000,828 338,459 (17934)'-- '(466‘-})%.
;NetAsseLs Begmnmg N RN S by 406,692 - ~'3'68_,233' V384597 ~10 44% i
NetAsscls,Endmg IO CL§ 4272170 __--5.406.692-:' ;-.,$ 20.525,__{_ 505% 15{

g R e R R Caplml gmnts and appropnanuns )
s ..+ Permanent endowrent addmons R

OPERATING'EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
' 5472 498 (thousands of doEIars)

Auxllsary Enterprlses S e
Lo $55269 "\, Depreciation $22,389- .
: Scholarshlps and.: TR LI : I T PR
: FE"OWEI‘IIPS .!nstructlon_=‘.-. g .
BT RCHY R

: Operatlon&
) Malntenanc:a of F'Iant" -
" gasgemnt

lnstnutvonal Supp_clrt
$18 074

~."Sll.J_den.t:Servieesﬁ Sl S
st T e

- §101,788"

g Acaderﬁe Sﬁpport--: e e
©OB33ET ERE Public Service. - :
G B e e




F OWS.

' 3Statement of Cash Flows

nemnvestmg, and noncaprtal financing purposes.

recewed frem lnvestrno ﬂCthlileS The fifth section reconc1les

s '_.the net cash used to ‘the operating: income or loss reflected on
o the: Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Net
e Assets '

e '_ _'Debt Admlnlstratton

o The -Umversuy s financial statements 1nd1c‘1te. '
: -$il2 600,000 in bonds payab]e $6, 369 190 in capttal leases.

: 'payable and $705, 700 in notes payab]e at June 30, 2003,

Durtng the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, the State ei i
~South Carolina, on behalf of the University, 1ssued General -
- “Obligation Bonds totaling $34,165,000 for the tenovation of |~
-~‘the University’s Fike Récreation/Wellness Center, for
~ . replacement of the Ltttlcjohn Cohseum rodf, and to acquire - "
- land and begln construcuen of additional research laboralnnes
o :Also dunng the fiscal yearendmg June 30, 2003, the University
.- ‘issued-Athletic Facilities Revenue Bonds tota]lng $7,000,000 .
- for {he renovation of - various Umversuy athletic lamhtles and :
 for the design and development phase of planned tmprovement.s oo

_to the West end zone .of Memorial Stadium. -

S The Umvers:ty s bonded mdebtedncss conmsted of :
General. Obligation Bonds of $42, 465 OOO Plant Irnprovement R
o Bonds of 5,685,000 and various revenue bond issues totaling - '
-564, 450 ODQ ‘General Obltuetton bonds are obligations of the

State ‘of South Carolina and are secured as.to principal and

._"_-mterest by a pledge of full faith, credit, and taxing power of -
- 'the State and are paid w1th tuition and matnculdtten fees. Plant .
R Impmvemem Bonds are secured by apledge ofa specral strdent ;-

_ : : i rssued ferstudcnt and faculty housm stedluutrefuriding, p]ent SR
- The final statement’ presented is the Statement of Cash
_ The Statement of Cash Flnwe pret‘.entq detailed .
- .xnforrnatlon about ihe: eash activity of the institution during _
- the year. _The stutement is divided into. ﬁve parts The first -
- ‘part deals with eperatmg cash flows ancl shows the net cash
- used by the operating aclivities of the institution. The second ..
.. section reﬂects cash flows from noneapltal financing achvmes T
27 This’ seetlon reﬂects the cash received and spent for non- -
o Dperatm
" The third section deals with cash flows from capilal and related -
L J‘mancmg activities. This. secuen deals w;th the cash used for -
" the acquisition and censtructten of capital and related items.”
~The fourth section reflects the cash flows. from mvestmg
1" activities and shows the purchases proceeds, and interest ;.
- '-Economtc Outiook : : e i
S As a state supported htgher educatten 1nst1tut10n the'_ SRR
" economic pasition of the University is closely ued to the State_ T :
o of South Carolma The State closed fiscal year 2003 wrth a .’
s cumulattve &177 million deficit desptte the greatest mtd-year' S
“budget cuts in’state’ history. - Overly - optimistic Tevenue L
Pprojections were blamed for the shortfal] ‘State constitutional
f'requlrements to restore amounts drawn’ from the General -
Reserve “Rainy Day Fund” to balance the 2003 budvet could e

.....

Cwith pledeed nct revenues spee:al :mposed student fces and' R

:stadtum seat taxes. L
© Thé $6,369, 190 in capttal leases is° cempnsed of three S

_]eases for land and real estate. Two of these leases are with the -~~~

_C_lemso_n University Research Foundation, a_rel_ated party.

- During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, the University =~ .~
':-;borrowed ‘BGOO 000 from the CIemsnn Umvers1ty Foundation, * © -
“arelated party, to construct a new bmldmg at the Clemson -
-*Appare] Research Famhty The remaining netes payable
balance reiated to the purchase of a fire truck, - ' '

“For adchtlenal mfnrmatmn on Debt Admmtstratmn see' '

'Notes 6 and 7 in the notes te the ﬁnancral statements

]lkely 1eac1 to addttronal fiscal year 2004 citts. " ‘
i The fiscal year ’)004 budget adopted by the Clemson

. University Board of Trustees reflects record low state .
g appropnatlon fundlng of less than twenty~l' ve percent of the BT
 total Umvers1ty budget “To partially offset this reductton is
* state funding, wition was tncreasecl 18.8 pereent i‘or beth in- L
,state and out-of-state students. - ' - S
“ State lottery funding supported increases in the Paimettd B
_Fellows and LIFE scho]arshlp programs. Few in-state freshmen_ s
“pay the full tuition:amount. Last year 97 percent had state.
- 'scholarships. ‘State funded scho]arshtpe mereaeed from$158 .
. mtlllon 10.$26.6, million in fiscal year 2003 e Lo
'Once agam the Umversny fnished the l' scal year beiler iy
off than the previous year. By focusing ever more limited = -
. 'resources ‘on_priorities it continues to make progress and . e
1mprove academrc quahty The Umversuy continues to hire - ol
" and Tetain ‘outstanding” young faculty, and attracts far more L
.'1quahﬁed studenls than can be accepted :

-' _-._;"iee desxgnated for the Jmprovcment ofplant Revenue bends:_' S o




“'cLEMSbN"Uﬁi\'/E'ris"l'TY? i
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30 2003 e

ASSETS
Currem Asselq
.. Cash and cash cquwu[ents
Restr:cu:d Assets - Currcnt

§ 90978873 ¢

.+~ Cash and cash’ eqmvalems :
" Actounts receivable, net .. 5,594,521
Grants and contracts receivables... 25,193,154
<. Cointributions Teceivable, net .. S 2375220
Interest and income reccwublc_ v L482,261
- Sindent anns recewahle T 03500
L Inventories 798,736 -
Prcpald evpenses S1792339 00
. Other : I ; co 35817
"Tol.ll cum:nt us.r;n:ts -5163,616,700.
Non'c'm"ren! Assets ¥ SR e
. Notes receiveble - : G B 49 634,602 .-
.7 Contributibns’ reccwable nct PREAET 3,779,639 . :
“o Investments:

Restricted Assets Noncurrent
Chsh'and cash equivalents
Sludmt Iozms recclvablc

" Other:.

S e - 384,630
S C_apilal aSsct_s,' 1l

Told] noncurrcnl assu_‘,

* T(ll‘ll ussets hadl

L IABILITIES
: Currem Lmhlhhcs ;
" Accounts and retainages pavablc
* Accrued payroll and related liabilitics .

- Acerued compensated absences arul rL[ated liabtilttcs.' 11,646,286
:, =" Accrued interest pa\ablc € vl LTAR T
27 Deférred revenues o S ]9 737,509
- Bonds'payable”; ST e

Capital leases pa\nbh. 1,014,335
' Notes pavable...: 161.723.
o oDeposits”, S ASS Y86
* Funds held Tor others _ _ _ W UATEARe
'1. Tol'iil'currem Iiﬁh_!!_itlcs : Laila ' : T

i 65367,6]5

Nnncurrent Ll.lhllltles o L i e
- “Aéerued tompensated ahqmu.w and rclaicd [mb:]mes 23050714
Funds led for othrs 6,796,019 7

1 106,080,000

- Bonds pavable’.
73,334 833

7 Capital lénses. pd\dblc
' _Nmeq pa\dbk R T
Tnta] nnncurrcni ]mbllmes SO 123 825,565 gy

i .3' Tm.xl Imb:lltlcs couii .

NLT A%‘? ‘ :
lnvuu,d in capﬂal '15::8!5 nLl Df rLI.m.d deb[
: __Restnctt:d for Nc}nc\pcndabk
i+ Scholarships and Fellawships .
© . Restricted for Expendable:.
“+ v Scholarships and Fe!lowsh]p i

g '3;”_ 2’56‘ 257, 5"'9,':_

922316"'

36494027

2997100 F

B 13,079,400‘.-:’---*- :
6085605

Lo aTseEmatel
_ 1452793416
S 616,410,116 i

0620464 T

S 3439770

L 189,193,180

6T, 578236
13599240

Research : S :
- Instructional dl..pzmmcnt use 29,925 658 100
" Loans. -

o =C'spllal proje
o Debt service’

‘-".Unrt._';tnctcd Epanee el ‘- L ———

52,569:847 1.



CLEMSON UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
rcr the year cnded Junc 30, 2003 :

REVE&UES :
Opera!mgﬁevenues. B i R o e e T R e
* Student tuition and fees (nct of scholarshlp nlluwanccs ‘of 331 312 478) . . . . v $ T 111,345,864
Federal grants and contracls 62,687,066 -

.- -State grants and contracts ... ~29,158,199
* Local grants-and contracts . 1,318,666
_:" Nongovérnméntal prants nnd cuntracls 10,140,003 © -
. -Sales and services of éducational and mhcr actwmes -9, 674 570 R
- Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises - pludged for revenue bonds :
(m.t of. scholarshlp allowances of $9,264, 398) . L 52,8] I, 448 ;
: Sa]cs zmd services of numlmr_\, cnlcrpnsts not ph,dgcd c7,238, 097 -

. Other opcratmg revcnucs _ - 13,203,887 PR
: Tulnl upernlmg rcvcnues e 297 577,800
E)\PENSES‘ :
. Opernhng Expenses : : S
" Compengation and empioyee benef’ts oo -304,258,839 -
_“Scrwccs and supplles S, 124,099,709 0

- Utilities .., " 11,542,140
_ ‘Depreciation ... ©22,358.905
i Scholnrsiups and fei]owsiups 10,238,045

lotal opcr.llmg. Npcnsu' _ seseeninen - _ i T L UAT2ART6IR
: Opcralmg lms e eeesees ot evirsenisesesenteasse s e cemsctss e . - bt T (174.919.838) S

- I\ONOPLRAT]'\IG REVL\'DFS (L\PE\‘BES)

'_Sl.m. appropriations ;... o ‘:'_539,6'1_5‘.262 - .'
. Federat dpproprmhum Lol 11,491,858
CGifts ‘ Lt 13,230,933

Inierest:income ...
- Endowment income ..
‘Interest on capnal asset retaed dt.ht
-Othr nonoperating revenues s
Gain/loss on dlspnsal of capu.nl

T7.586.737

2,563,672
C352126T)
1490380 - 2
S (L094436) e

. RLIunds 0 prantors .. _ - _ : (334,603} .
r\u:l nnnnptr.mng rucmus (c\pmscs) e OERT ' U, T eeniemnedoits A :17'9,228,536._ E
lntume hefnrc nlhcr rc\mms, upr.-nscs, gams‘ or lussts I - : _. . Lo __4,3(}8..69_8_ U

st Cﬂpllﬂ] dP:'Jrnprmnom 10,369,871

Capital grants anid gifis .., : 60174997
o Additions to erm.mun t.ndm\mt.nls 120,528 .
R __Rt.mll!anct.s 10 1h¢. state o (549,158)
_ lncrc.m in net ASSLIS warnioe 3 g : PRI S eesnmssesserrtines -7 20,524,937 -
_‘\e!Asscls-;"‘ R RO
~Ner assets, Beginning of \Lar _ w0 406,091,999 0
Net assets, End of Year .. § 427216936 1

| See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. -

26~



-'CLEMSO’N UNIVERSITY =
- STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 3(} 2003 T

CAGH FLO\VS l'ROM OPERATING ACT!V[TIES
- Payments from customers
G’rams and contracis ;...

S 1710198,297

 Paymenis 1o suppliers . (158,009,242)"

.+ Pavments to ¢inployees . R

" ‘Payments for benefits. L (52,904,470) 0

" Payments to students . “(16,6T 802y
Inflows from Stafford: loans . © 28,864,519

" Outflows - from Stafford: loans
- Loans ta students .2
. Cnllectmn ofloans

(1,082,019).
©1.559.334 ¢

L (175623243)

Net cash used by opcrnlmg acilvmec :

o CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACFIVITIES
State’ appropriations..

" Federal appmprmtmns

' '. G]ﬂS

U 133R4214.

: Ner cash ﬂnw prnwdcd by nuncuprml f'nancmg nctmtms )
L CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELA’I‘ED FIN AI\'CNG ACTlViTlES_'
s -Proceeds from’ capnaf debt: .0
* 7. State capital ‘appropriations..,
: Capital grants and gifts received
.- Purchases of capital assets
7 Principa)paid-on caplml de _t'and Jease,
- !mm_si and ﬂ:t:s

112,158,356
LIBI0GTS
(62,544,433)

e (5 630

S Imcru! iy Investments ;. RN 1 _

o .‘_PH)CLL(!H from stock sales e AT
2l Net cash Tlow prm:ded hy : , ‘ o : i . 8.528,703.
; ._: . Net Ch.mﬂt. in L.lsh i " it s _7.7_45,450_ o

~ Cash hu_mmnu ofu.dr : : R . X CLE132,806,950:

i Cash end’ of\u'

v Rccuni._l ‘eriues (e.\pe
" Opérating Joss . i
Adjustmi.mq toy l'LCDnC]I(. nel ioss {o m.l LdSh u;

DLpILLId[lOIl L\pense

»e)_t_(i_xnél. ¢at h u%cdb} 'np'criit_in'g u‘c_t_i.\_lt.it"

operating aciivities;

Ch'mﬂc in asset and lluh:]n
o Receivahlas et s :
- Grants and.C onlrau‘; RLCL]\ dh]i.
* Student ]m 1% receivahle .
Prépaid- eXpenses’,
1]1\’Lniﬂl'li.5
A Cither .
SR Acmums & retoinages pi
. Accrued pavtoll and related linbilities ..
ShoAceraed Compt..n:;atcd absences and relatt.d liﬂbi]]l!C‘i
= Deferred reverue ;

12,212,799 0
(106,419). "

. 86,700:

S 1513421 °

: '.,Du.posus held: inr others: Gl (944.357),
. ’\ct cash uscd by oper__ ng acmmts " g (173 6"3,243)_'
- NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS .0 - ' 5SS

Iricrease ini. i.nr value cafmvutms.nls
> Eqummun aqumd lhrnuuh gifts .

RLCO\'C]LIA] ION OF CASH \ND CASH EQ ]

U8 20605800

\ ALENT BAL.—&NCES

96326004 . i

."-.'(240,286,4“){ R

L (4618323)

139,615:362 -

CL41765.0000

C(6.628.322)

Lo 08702027y o

CUB3RL029.0

5052400
: $ (174 919, e
2 358,@0_3 S

(B0.374281)

1306,599)

(5.185,623) .
316333 L
(199,000):% .00 =i

1,280,628

00,978 873.;' :

Cum.n[ assets: :
- Cash and cashy cqm\aicnls e
"Restricted cash nnd r.ash Lqu\ﬂ[Lnlh ! 36 494 127000 e
Nnmurrr.m assets, b g e e ek . -13,079,400.

lo!a] c.lsh :md c.lsh equnulem ha].mcts

- See *:ibdbrﬁpdnyiﬁ;’z notes to basic ﬁnan’c"ia! statements, -

Cerre

$‘_ 140,552.4007 . -




.+ 'NOTES TO FINANCJAL_‘STATEMENT_S

Z,ZNOTE1 RS T
o 'SUMMARY or-' SIGNIFICANT
A .aCnUNT!NP Dnum::e

Nature of Organlzatlon o

"Clemson Umvers:ty isa. State—supported coeducanonal i

institution of higher education. The University is granted an

' “annual appropnat:on for operatmg purposes as authorxzed by

" “the South' Carolina General Assembly. ~ The Appropriation

.- Act authorizes. expendlmres from funds approprlated fromthe

'~ General Fund ofthe State and authorizes. .expenditures of total-

RE "operatmg funds. The laws of the State and the policies. and -
- procedures specified by the State for State agencies and
- institutions are applicable to the. activities of the University.
= The University was established as an’institution of hlgher.
SR educauon by Section 59- 1]9-20 of the Code of Laws of South-
- " Carolina in accordance with the will of Thomas Green Clemson
and the Act of Acceptance of the General Assembly of South_
' Carolma The University is part of the primary govemment of -

the State of South Carolina and its funds are reported in the
. State’s hlgher education funds in the Comprehenswe Amnual

Financial Report of the State of South Carolina. Generally all

' State departments agencres and colleges are included in the

-State’s reporting entity. ‘These entities are f"nancrallv_':

‘accounitable to and fi scally dependent on the State.

L 1nclud1ng six elected by the Staté Legrslamre and seven self—

o perpetuanngllfe members. Accordmﬂ!v as such it adniinisters, .
-+ has jurisdiction over and is rcsponsrble for the management :
b of the Umversltv S : - :

'Reportlng Entlty

- As defined by Govemmental ACCOLlntln" Standards Board

o _':(“‘GASB )Statementl\lo 14, The Financial Reporting. Enmy'
. the Umversny isnot i nancially accountable for any other entity,. .
or are there any other entities for wh;ch the nature. and

S -srgmf’ cance of their relattonsh:p w:th lhe pnmary govermment
are such that exclus:on could cause the f nanclal statements to el

' 'be mtsleadlng or mcomplete

g F_manmal Statement Presentano" S

The financial statements are. presented in, accordance wrth

‘GASB Statement, No '34.° Basic Financial Statements and

- 'Marmgemem Drrcmsran ‘and -”lfrah.srv for Stote and Local :
: '.:Gavemmem and GASB Statement No. -335, Basic Financial =
; Srarementa and Manaeemems Dmcmston and 4;70.’1519 for:

o Pubhc Colleges. and Umver sities. The financial statement
© ‘presentation requlred by GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35

" provides a comprehensive, entuy-wrde perspective of the -
: _"Umversny S assets, Ilabilmes net assets, revenues, expenses "

. }changes in net assets and cash ﬂows e

o Measurement Focus and BaS|s of Accountlng

. “For financial reportmL purposes, the Umvers:ty is -
- considered a specml purpose government engaged only in
: busmess—tvpe acttv:ues Accorde]v the Umversuy 3 fi nancial -

i f_m the State’s internal cash management poot..
~cash manaeement pool operates as a demand deposrt actount,

‘ ﬁequwalents
-'manaaement pool.:.

statements are presented usmg the economlc resources' R

. measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under

. the ‘accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and
B expenses are recorded when an obligation has been 1ncurred -

The - Umversrty applies all: appllcable GASB

S pronouncements and, in accordance with GASB Statement No.: -~
©20,'the State of South Carolma has elected to apply only those

- Financial “Accounting “Standards Board (“FASB”) .= -
: pronouncements issued on or before November 30 1989 not S

. _-1n conflict with GASB standards.. L

' The preparation of. financial statements in conformtty wrth' s

generally accepted accounting principles in the United States |

" .of America to make estimates and assumptions that affect the '

. -reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, -

- "-and affect disclosure of contmgent assets and liabilities atthe - .

date of the financial statements Actual resu}ts coulcl dlffer SRS

from those estunates

: :_'Cash and Cash Equuvalents

The amounts shown in the fi nanc1a1 stutements as cash_ -

and cash equivalents” represent petfy cash, cash on deposn in
- banks, cash on deposit with the State Treasurer, cash invested -

i various instruments bv the State Treasurer as part of the _
o State’ s internal ca.sh manauementpool cash- mvested invarious =
. _short term instruments by the State Treasurer and held in _
! Separate agency accounts, and certain funds mvested w1th i
: _"fWachowa and Prudentlal Securitjes. = :
- The Un:versrty is governed by a board of thtrteen members, . -

-.Most State agencies, mcludinathe Umversu} partlt:lpate :

amourits 1nvesled in the pool are classified ds cash and cash'

of deposit, collateralized erurchase agreements, and certain

~corporate bonds. For credit risk information pertaining to: the
'.=.-_-cash manaoement pool see the deposrts disclosures.in Note 2.

The State’s internal cash management pool consrsts ofa.

: "eaneral deposit accounit and severa] speclal deposrt accounts. - - -
‘The State records each equity ‘interest in the general deposn'

account; however all earnings on that account are credited 1o

“the General Fund of the State. The University records and..." kD
reports its dep051ts in the general’ deposrt account at cost. It T
_tecords and reports its special deposit account at Tair value "

- Investments held by the pool are ‘recorded at fair value, Interest °
~garned by the Umverssty 5 special deposnt accounts is posted - ..

: to its account at the end of each month and is retarned Interest .o
“-earnings are allocated. based on the’ percentage’ of the 7.
" University’s accumulated daily i mcome receivable to the total ' :
~income receivable’ of the pool; - _
o _mc]udes interest- eamm;:s at the stated rate, realized Lams/-ﬂ ok
losses and unrealized gams/losses aristng from changes inthe.
- fair value of investments held by the pool. Realized £ains; and
losses are allocated daily and are mcluded inthe accumulated _
“ inicome receivable: Unreahzed gains and losses are allocated .
~*at year ‘end based on the percentage of ownership in the pool. -

T YT

‘Because, the

The State Treasurer administers the cash o

‘ The: pool mcludes some Eong-term- S

o anvestments ‘'such as obl:gauons of the United States and certain

- agencies of the United Statés, obligations of the State of South L
'ﬁ'Carolma and certain of its political subdivisions, cemﬁcates' S

chorted interest. income -



Investments R L A i
: - The: Umversrty accounts for its tnvestments at fa:r va]ue- x
':.Changes in’ unreahzed gain (loss) on: the. carrying: ‘value of e
' mvestments are reported as acomponent of investiment income . :
" in the statement of revenues expenses and changes in net."‘
EE aSSets i : :

Recelvables ST : TR

' Accounts recewab!e cons:sts of tumon and fee charges to-_ﬁ_ .
".students and au‘tlhaty enterpnse servrces prowded to students, o

_ ' 'faculty and staff the majority of each residing in ‘the State-of -

. South-Carolina, Accounts recetvable are recorded net of'_

- Inventortes TP =
lnventortes formternal use arc valued at cost }nventones o
For resaie are camed at the lower of cest or markct Items. :

Some State Treasurer accounts are not mcluded in the

' State’s mtemat cash management pool because of restncttons
- on'the use of the furids: “For those accounts, cash equwalents _
_-include investments in short-termi, htghly hqutd securities . -
- having an internal rnatttnty of three months or less at the time -
Soof acqutsmon-_ For purposes of the statement of cash flows; -« -
" the University ( con51ders all htghly hqu:d lnvestments with'an

_ original maturlty of three months or less to be cash equwa]ents -
.- Funds invésted through the State Treasurer's Cash Management S
B Prograrn are consrdered to be cash equwalents ' S

esttmated unco]]ectlble arnounts

L Grants and contracts recelvable 1nciude amounts due from :
'the Federal govemment state and local governments; orprwate
i sources, in’ connectlon w1th relmbursement of ailowable
. "e:\pendltures mdde. pursuant to the. Umversny f grants and -
" contracts, Also included aré amounts due for Federal loanand
S scholarshlps programs and retmbnrsements for l'edera} iand— o
_°1 grant expenditures. RN R
A Contributions recelvab]e are accounted for at thelr' L
estlrnated net reahzable va!ue The estnnated net rea]tzab]e

value comprehends the present value of 16ng-term pledges and

g reductions for any al]owance for uncol!ectrble plcdoes Pledges s
ovary from one to ten years and.are used to support specrt' caIEy
. | _tdentlf' led UnlverSIty programs and uuttatwes

Amounts due from the Clemson’ Unwersrty Foundatton

—— 'are pursuantto a Memorandum of Understanding between the
P _'Um\fersny and that: entlty prompted by a 1999 chanee in the S
. -South Carolina Code of Laws that allowed. state- supported L
t:nwer51t1es to Iend enc!owment baiances to separately chartered FT
U nof= for—prof't entities whose e\tstence is prlmari!y prov1d1ng: :
o financial assistance and other support to'the institution and-its -
o 'educatlonal programs For addn:onal mformat]on regardlng :
?‘-thls loan; see Note 3. SRS _
- ‘Student loans recewable consrsts of amounts due from L
_the Federal Perkins’ Loan Proeram and from other Ioans. '
'adrnmtstered by the Umversrty SRR : : o

_ j lnierest and mcome recewable cons:sts of amounts due
from the State Treasurer relaune ta holdlnos in the State’s'
. internal cash management pool and cash mvested in' varlous i
Lo 'short-term tnvestments by that aeencv? R g :

Funds Held for Others : : e R
o Current baiances in Funds Held for Others result ﬁom the'_; PR
- Unwersrtv actmn as an auent or t' ductary for another entlty 5

accounted for as Umversny 1nventor1es usmg the movmg -
weighted average methed include: maintenance supphes L
: housmg supplies; Janttonal and aiito’ supplies, “printing and’: - "
. graphic supplies, offic ice supphes teIecommunlcanons 5upphes

.and medlcaf supphes SRR . : S

’Noncurrent Cash and lnvestments FEREE
 Cash and investments that are external]y restrtcted to mahe L
debt service payments maintain sinking or reserve funds and' D

cash and investments representlng permanent endowrnents are o

B _cIassrﬁed as ncncurrent aSSets in the statement of net assets SCIER

"'ff_ Capttal Assets

Captta] assets a are recorded at cost at the date of acqulsmon_’ﬁ_f

or fair market value at the date of donatton inthe case of gifts. = i
~ The. University follows. capttahzat]on guidelines estabhshed'f'_._ s
"By the State of South Carolina; " All land’is’ caprtahzed
= .regardless of cost Quahfymg nnprovements thatTestinoron- .

|+ the land itself are recorded as deprecmb]e land 1mprovements o
‘Major additions and renovations and other improvements that. "

add to the usable space, prepare exrstlng burldmgs for new -

.- ses; or- ‘extend the useful life of an_existing: bulldtng dre

caprtahzed The University: capttahzes movable personal
. property with a unit value in excess of $5,000 and ausefulTife
" in excess  of one’ year and deprecrable Tand nnprovements S

butldmgs and 1mprovements and mtangtb[e assets; mcludmg'--

" internally developed soﬂWare costlng in‘excess. of $100;000.
‘Routine repairs and maintenance and library rnatena]s except_ .
individual items costing in e\cess of §5, 000: are. charged o
operating e\pcnses in the year m Which the e\tpense was. o

mcurred

Deferred Revenues L g e
Deferred revenues mclude amounts recuved for tuttton' i

"and fees- and certain aumhary actmtles -prior to the énd ofthe-__ e

 fiscal vear but; related ta the. subsequent dccounting perlod Ve
. Deferred revenues dlso include amounts received: From urant.
L and contract sponsors that have not vet been earned R

Deposns -

“Deposits: represent donnttorv Toom depos:ts secunty_[ ey

depostts for possible room damage and key Ioss other deposats ,
and student fee: refunds -Stident deposits are recogmzed as.

_revenue durtng the semester the deposrt becomes nonrefund’tble o '
'to the student under the forfelt tenns of the agreement R

‘ Deprcclanon is computed using the strarnht-hne method P
over the estimated useful lives of the assets] 5enerally 150 40'-,' }

© years for butldmos and 1mprovements and Jand |mprovements SRR
' and 6 to 20 years for' machmery, equ:pment and vehicles: o0
Internaliv develnped software is depreciated using the strawht—f R
*Tine' method overa three year period: A full year of deprec:atton'__
~is taken the: year: the asset'is: p]aced in servrce and no-.
deprecranon is tai\en in the year of‘dlsposmon L



 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .. -

These include amounts due to other universities in the National
"Texn]e Consortium and amounts due for varioits study abroad E
* “-programs, Noncurrent balances represent the Federal hablllty. L

' _:for_refundable_advances under the Perkins Loan Program. == 0%

L .-Prepa:d Expenses . SRR

' Expendltures for insurance and smniar services pald for |

*"in the current or prior ﬁscal years and heneﬁtmg more than . -

- -one accountmgperlod are allocated among accounting perlods SRR

S For the Umversrty, amounts reported in this asset account s
R consrstpnmanly ofprepatd insurance, prepald postage prepald :

airline tickets, and acivance payrnents for mamtenance and :

i SEI'VIC& agreements

"Internal Serv;ce and Auxlllary Enterprlse Actwrtles S
‘Both tevenue and expenses Telating to internal service o
e _(mc]udmg 1nformatlon technology costs) and auxxllary', s
" enterprise activities including prmt shop, office equlpment

mamtenance transportatlon services, telecommunlcatlons. T
mstttutlonal computmg, bookstores. and cafetenas have been o

S ehmmated

= ‘Compensated Absences

L Generally all permanent fuli-time State emp]oyees and L
i : certain part- -time employees scheduled to work at least one- }'
half of the agency’s workweek are entitled to accrue and carry
SR forward at calendar year-end maximums of 180 days sick leave -
“ . and of 45 days annual vacation Ieave ‘except that facuity
- members do not accrue annual leave. Upon termination of ..
State employment, emplo_yees are entitled to be paid for'__ .

accumulated unused annual vacation leave up to the maximum,

“ " butarenot entitled toany payment for unused sick Jeave, The © *~

'compensated absences liability includes accrued annual leave

~and compensatory: overtime ieave earned for which the
- employees: are_entltled to paid-time: off_or_pa}_mem ‘at..
. ‘The University calculates the .compensated -
" "absences liability based on recorded balances of unused leave. ;
: for whlch the empiover expects to compensate ‘employees
-+ through. pa;d time off or cash payments at termination,. That . .
7 liability is mvcntoned at. fiscal year—end current salary costs B
- -and the cost of the- sa]ary—re]ated benefit pavments and net’.
'-"change in the ]1ab1ht} is recorded in the current year in the.

_termination,

- 'appllcable functlona] expendlture categones

E __"-NoncurrentLlab|I|t1es S

~Noncurrent Tiabilities mclude (1) prmcrpa] ainounts of o
“." revenue bonds payable, notes payable, and capital lease *
" obligations with contractual maturities greater than one year; -

(2) estimated amounts for accrued compensated absences and

- other liabilities that will not be paid within the next 1 scal year; ..
L and (3) other liabilities that, although payab]e within one year. T
S are to be patd from funds that are ciassat' ed as noncurrent assets -
' < . e ns s transactions, stich as (1), student tuition and fees, net of

' {NetAssets ; S PR
_ The Umversny s net assets are cla551f'ed as follows

o Restrrcted Net Assets . Erperrdabie

f .:.__"Im:ested in. Capara! Assers Net of Re!ated Deb: Thrs: Lo

‘represents the University’s total investment. in capital - :
“assets, net of outstanding debt obhgatlons related to those

_expendable. net assets include resources for Wthh the -
: Umversrty is legally or contractually obligated to spend

. resources in accordance with! restnct:ons 1mposed by =
Ca '-extemal thlrd parnes e e :

RestrrcredNetAssets Nonerpendable Nonexpendab]e L
- restricted net assets consist of endowrnent and similar

type funds in which donors or other outside sources have .

_"'_snpulated ds a condition of the gift instrument, that the - S

principal i 15 to be maintained inviolate and in pelpetmty, .

*and invested for the purpose” of producmg present,and

. “Tuture income, whlch may e]ther be expended or added
='_to prmcxpal RERRE SR

: UnrestrrcredNerAssels Unrestricted net assets represent -~

- expenses.for any purpose “These resources also mclude A

© supporting activities thal provnde servrces for students

B ‘faculty and staff

: When an. expense is mcurred that can be paad usme either.
restrictéd or unrestncted resources, the Umversrt} s policy is
. 1o first apply the expense towards unrestrlcted resources and

then towards restncied resources.

Income Taxes ey

“The: Umversrty ts a pohueal subdmslon of the Stale ot'

) :South Carolina and i is consequent]y xempt from tederal and_._ =
: State mcome[axes : '

Classmcatlon of Revenues

~The Umversaly has classified its revenues as erther-_’:_
operatmo or nonoperatmg, revenues accordmu to the followmn R

' CI’ltEl’lﬂ

Opergtin:g, reveniies: Operating revenues include
“activities that have the characteristics of exchange ...

scholarship discounts and allowances (2) sales and

. services of auxiliary enterprises. net of scholarship - S
' dlscounts and a]lowances (3) most Tederal stale and Iocal -

capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but " -
:‘not yet expended for capltal assets, such amounts arenot * e _'
S “included as a component of mvested in capltal assets nelf:-'f c '
I -..of related debt - : TS

Restricted .

_,_--.'-resources ‘derived from student tition and fees, state
: ;appropnatlons and sales and services of educatlonal
"-.'_'departments and auxilmry enterpnses These resources - .
are used for transactlons relating to the educanonal and_. '_ )
general operanons of the University and may be used at. -

a the d]SCI‘Et]OI‘I of the governing board to mieet current o '

“abxiliary enterprises.-which are substantially self-< .. 00



‘ EducatlonalActlvrtles Revenue R A e
: Revenues froi sales'and services of edueatmnal setivities 5
'genera]ly consist of amounts recelved from mstructtonal =
laboratory, research and publlc service actlv;tles that-
" incidentally create goods and services which may be soid to
. students, faculty staff, and the general pubhc The Umver51ty---- :
- " receives such revenues primarily from various activities related -
o to t.heUmvers1ty s agricultural public service mission; including’
e pest|c1de reglstratlon and Ilcensmg fees, hvestock poultry and
o _.:.health test fees; extensron service fees forest product sales g
and: youth' camp ‘fees.. These’ unrestricted: revenues are | -
~ = collectively Iabeled “Sales and Servwes of Educattonal_i
Departments” : s

- -Schotarshlp Dlseounts and Allowances 5
. Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other feveniids o
__from students are reported net of' seho]arshtp discounts’ and_' R T PR
" allowances in the statemient of reventies, éxpensés and changes = S
-~ in net assets.’ Schoiarsblp discounts and allowances are the "
: dlﬂ'"erence between the stated charoe for goods and ‘services
"provrded by the Umversrty, and the amount t_hat is pald byjj o
*students and/or third pames makmg payments on the students
" behalf; Certam govemmenta] grants; sueh as Pell grants, and
o .:-'other Federal, state ornongovemmental programs arerecorded '+ -

Reeoncmatlon of Deposrts and Investments

Total© -

E :NoTés_T_o chmt srArEi\ﬂEﬂ.Ts..‘-_

lnterest on mstrmtmnal 10ans

;_::f'Nonoperatmgrevemzes Nonoperatlng revenues mclude =
* . activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange- T
R _Rebatable Arbltrage

transactions, such as gifts-and contr:butrons and other-
‘revenue sources that are defined as nonoperatmg revenues:

" by GASB' Statement No. 9; Reporting Cash Flows of -
' Praprletary and. Nonexpena’able Trus! Fund's and:

Governmental Enm:es That Use Propnerary Fund - i

'.'_-Accauntmg, and GASB Statement No. 34 such s state:-j' Sl

L approprlatlons and lnvestment mcome

.; grants and contracts and Federa! appropnatlons and (4) i '_ Deferred Charges

NOTE 2
' _CASH AND CASH EQUlVALENTS
-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS F)
AIE deposrts and investments of the Umversrty are under S

*. as either operatmg or nonoperating revenuesin the Umvemny 5 the control of the State Treasurer who, by law, has sole authority .7

. financial statements. : To:the extent that revenues from such :”
- proﬂrams are used 10 satlsfy tumon arid Tees and other student :
. charges, the Umversrty has recorded a scholarshtp dlseount'_ N

’ and aIEowance - R h

Deferred charges connected with bond issuance costs are

- 'reported ag an asset titled “Other” and are amortrzed over the G
' hves of the bond 1ssues on a stralnht-lme basas ' e

. Arbitrage involves the mvestment of proeeeds from dre.."".' :

sa]e of tax-exempt secuntres in a taxable investment thetylelds RO
“a higher rate, resultmg in 1ncome in excess of interest costs: R
. Federal ]aw reqmres entities to rebate to the Uovemment such: -
income on tax-exempt debt if the: yleld from those earnmgs e
: f"_exceeds the effective yield on the related” tax- exempt debt
i issued. Govemmenta] units may avoid the requtrement o
n rebate the “excess” earnings to the federal government under ©
- certain circtimstances, if they issue nio more than $5 millionin =~~~
< total of all such debt ini acalendaryear orlf they meet spec:t' ted
'targets for expendltures of the proceeds and interest eammgs{- o
~thereon. - For this purpose, tax- -exempt indebtedness mcludes_

bonds and certain Cﬁpltﬂ] leases and instaliment purchases: The

. '_-federa! govemment on]y requu'es arbltrage be’ calcutated S i
.'reported and-paid every five years or at maturity ofthe debt, =
whichever is earlier:~ However, the potentlaf hablhty ls_'-_-"- S
caiculated annuaIly for financial reportmg purposes., Arbttragef- T

expendttures are va]ucd using the rebate miethod.. The'_

expendlture and Ilablllty if any, are recorded and_a reserve,- ‘
. ﬁmd to hqu;date the hab;ilt} is estabhshed e

for investing State funds. - Certaini monies are ‘deposited or

mvested wrth or managed by financial mstltutions and brokers; S

The f'ollowmﬂr scheduie reconcrles dep051ts and"_;'

: 1nvestments wrthm the foomotes to ihe balance sheet amounts T ke

Statement of Net Asset.s I R
" Cash and cash equwalents - : R R 40 55’ A00.

]nvestments ST

Caemnial g

: .'.__-']nveqlmt.nls held 'h\" tate Trt.nsurer';_._.. e

P8 143,549,508

“Footnotes ;.

.~ Cash on hand .- S ST 931960_‘--:__-'
. Deposﬂs eld hv Smte Treesurer : 5 j'_--I39,208 1597
-Other deposits. : e 1 112,2813

: 'Oihr_r 1nu.stmt.nl';
I'otul R

154439




“'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Tl

. '_'Deposns Held by State Treasurer

L ‘State law- requires_full co]laterallzatlon of all State-: ’
Treasurer bank balances. The State Treasurer- must correct -
L any deﬁcnencres in collateral wrthm seven days. e

: *“With respect 0 mvestments in the State S mternal cash
management poo] all of the State Treasurer s investments are. .

" insured or regrstered or are investments for which the securities

o lOther Deposne s T ERRNY L
. ..The Unwersrty 5 other deposrts at year—end were. enttre!y L
- .'covered by federa] deposuory insurance or coliateral held by SR
5 '.-custodlal banks. : :
_ -The University’s other depos:ts are categonzed to glve an ‘
e mdlcatton of the ievel of rlsk assumed by the entlty at yeari“,'

' ~‘end. The credtt nsk categones are concerned Wlth custodtal i
~credit nsk, which i is the risk that a government willnotbeable .-
to récover depos:ts if the deposnory financial mstltutlon fails -~ :
- or to tecover the value of collateral securities thatarein the- . = "
L possessmn ofan outs‘.lde pany ifthe connterparty to the dep051t L]
- transaction fails, There are three categones of dep051t credtt L
- -_'rtsk as fol}ows ' T : o
L oare - held by the State orits agent in the State's name, Informatlon o :
T __-perta:mng to the reported amounts, fair va]ues and credit risk -
- of the State Treasurer’s investments is disclosed in the
" " Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of South . .~
"+ Carolina. The amount recorded bytheUnlverSJty $3, 880,884
A ofthe $139,208,159 identified above as “‘Deposits held by State =
Ry _Treasurer is attnbutabie to unreahzed gams/ioss Y N

]) !nsured or eollaterallzed w1th seeurmes held by'_"' i
the entity or by its agent in the entity’s name. -,

: .pledglng fi nancral institntion’s trust department S
: --3:'oragentlntheentttysname _ SR
*."3)" Uninsured or uncollateralized, mcludmg any'
'bankba]ance that is coliaterahzed with securities.

5 ‘__“-_held by the p]edgtng financial institution, ar by . '

.enttty s name.

A sunnnary of June 30 2003 bank ba}ances by nsk
category follows :

S _Olth_'er 'I__J_e:po'e'i_t's_,bj'Rist('-c_at'egery S

“'Bank " Reported - :

i Category 9 Categ‘oryz'. '*'Category3 .7 ‘Balance - Amount -
sured (FDIC) - S 1097879 S8 gt U gnaorsm o s 02281

' 'Investrnents Held hy State Treasurer

o lnvestments held by State Treasurer comprtse mvestments
. he}d_ for the University and the State of South Carolina which
- are legally restricted and earnings thereon become revenue of.
- the specific fund from which the investment was made These -
- investments are specn‘" ¢, identifiable investment securities.
RS rlnvestments consist. of Agrwuitural Co!lege stock w1th a -
.- ‘carrying amount of 65,900 and Perpetual stock with a canymg
amount of $58,539 held by the State Treasurer-as Trustee in
Perpeturtv on which they are requared to pay the Unlversny 6_ o
'percent per. year Since there is no readily determinable fair -

* value for these’ investments, they. have been assrgned a fmr
value equal to lhelr hrstortca] cost vaiue :

o _Other Investmenm L : s
_ ~The Un:versny also has. znvestments in bond and eqmty L
" investment funds, as authomzed by. numerous donors All'of RN

~the University’ ] mvestments are held in the endowment and_ L S
“ - csimilar funds, The bond and equity mvestment funds, witha =~ -
“fair.value of $2.842,662, are held by Wachovia, ]nc as trustee
“7in accordance with the endowmentagreementspeelﬁedbythe Sy ONGIESIRER L et PR
. : 27 Total investments L5 F 8 2843662 0§ 2B42662 vyl

U MOther lnvestments are sta_ted at fatr vaiue_ and _t_nc_]ude_'_ EEER R E R e ‘

.- unrealized appreciation of $766,630. Purchases and salesare

ndonor

 accounted for on the'trade'date “Both unrealized and realized .
- gains and losses on |nvestments have been recorded in the fund v
holdlng the mvestment Eamlnos are recorded On an accrual -

g basw T

lnvestments are: cateoonzed to glve an mdlcauon of ihe )

: Ievel of risk assumed by the entity at year—end The credlt risk’
categories are concemed with. custodial credit risk, whtch s
theriskthata govemmenl will not be able torecoverthe value -~

- ofi investment or collateral securities that arein the possession -

of. an- out51de party if the counterparty 'to the investment

: transaction fails, There are three investment risk categories
“used for clasmt’ cation of securities. Investment funds arenot
: _reqnlred to be cateaorlzed The Unwers:ty had mterests in the_i_ =
'_followmg : s

Other'_ln_vestmgh'ts P

Reported - Fair

R R Amount Value R
“Equity investment funds. 3% 1,282,458 0 8000282458 0
-Bond._investment_fund_s ] 5600204 T ]!5(30,2(}4 S

L o~m~

-:2) - Collateralized with securities held by the i o

Cts trust department or agent but not 1n the"



NOTE3.
 RECEIVABLES

Umvers;ty recexvables reported m the Statement of Net Assets as of June 30 2003 were as foilows

| NOTESTO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

" University Ré’éeivabiééf SRy

s Accoums recewabte R
- Grants and contracts recewab[e o
~ Conlributions reeewahle Pe T
s Nntes receivable’ Gl
. Student [oans reeewable TR
‘_'_Interest and income reeewahle RRNEE
: Total reeewabies '

“ Current.

7" Nonecurrent:

O Total

L8l

9330."'.'4 S
L 1482261
0§ 33,516,808

5,594,521 -
251931540
1237527: &

6 985 605

= '3,.779,6.39:_ |
49,634,602"

C§55945210 0

125,193,154 .
©5,017,161

a9.634,602

L 6994955
1482261

$ 60 399 846 L% 93,916,654 0

Accounts recewable are reported net of allowances for doubtﬁ:l aeeounts of $89 077 based on credit losses experlenced in.
prior years and evaluation of current portfohos Student payment alIowances of $46, 000, parkmg services allowances of $38, 077,
and telecommumcatlons allowanees of $S 000 comprlse th]S amount Contrlbutrons recewable are reported net of a]iowances

. for uncollectible p]edges of $1,183; 901,

: Accounts recelvab]e for the year ended June 3() 003_,__'were compr_lsed oftne_foltowlng ba]anees: T

~ Accounts Receivable

L Computer services .
v Auxiliaries: e T
s Studentslsehoimhlps

el Mumc:paE services
ol Camps’ :
. 'Educatlonal prop_rams :
LT e T e
'Dter o |
Total aecoun!s ru:u\ uhle

S LS08,578
ST A6S,185 0
_ S 11068081

Professional devr.lopnu.m/cont‘erences PRI e '

6034250
286,634 1

. '_':_‘170 567'.'
- 150, 287

143, 316_.'

atemaar e
8. 5504520

Grants and contracts recewable are compnsed of amounts due for sponsored research pl‘Q}ECtS federal iand-ﬂrant

appropnatlons and' federal scholarshlp prourams Grants and contraet rece;vabte for the year ended }une JD (_)03_, were comp_nseq L SN

of the fo]lowmg ba]ances :

. Federal . "

‘State:

Local . Nongovernmentai ~ * Total %

R S'pnnsored“ro'eedrch_.'.,' : RENEIR : 3 _.E9,.663,0'7_6":__',.
B TR T SRR 13- b AR
185984

Land-rant 'dppmpr'i'ations'
L Scho]arhhlp proﬂnmq

"§ 0451537

$. 43,3_46__.:? .

“Total grants and comracts recewable U8 21,416,272 -

- § 945,153

3 48346

L% 2783383

§ 23444958
LI 1562012

s . 1 8“5,9_8'4 : COTE .

5 2783383

$. 25193154 o il




i not be less than zero.

= ‘:-NQ_T_ES_T_O_ FINANCIAL STAT_EN_IENTS:_-

Contnbutlons recewab]e are compnsed of pledges for giﬁs to support spemﬁcally 1deat|ﬁed Umversuy programs and to _': _: L B
prov1de athletic scholarships. Contributions receivable are accounted for at their estimated net realizable value, or the present -

value of long—ten'n p]edges net of reductlons for aIlowances for uncol]ectlble pledges Piedges valy from ong to ten yea.ts SR

X : ._é.ont_ri_bution's 'Recei'ua:ble:.‘ o

_' '.C'u'rrén':‘

“-Noncurrent " Total -,

| University programs - . 50 179,142 . § | 716570 - § 895712
. Athletic scholarships : 1,058,380 3,063,060 4121449
-/ Total receivables =" .- oo $1,237522 §°5.017,161 "

 §.3,779,63%

Part 1, Sectlon 9 of the 1998-99 State Appropnanons_ :

. Act amended the South Carolina Code of Laws by adding < S
~additional twelve month period unless either party provzdes L
-wrltten notice of objection to the extension, in which case, :
- the Memorandum -of Understanding will not automat:cal]y e
o extend for an ‘additional twelve month penod Theabovenot- -

- withstanding, either party may termmate the Memorandumof " -

3 -Understandmg at any time: without cause’ upon one hundred a

-~ eighty days written notice to the’ other party, SrhnAE
. ‘With minor exceptions, losses for loans to smdents are -
" not esttmated or recorded i i allowances for uncollectible
‘accounts. ‘At thetime a Ioan is cons:dered uncoiiectlble itis .
-charged to pnnmpal Any account receivable written’ off is

_Sectxon 59-101-410. This amendment allowed the governing:

. boards of state- supported universities to lend their endowment -
- -and auxiliary enterprise funds on deposit with the State’
" Treasurer’s Office to separately chartered not—for—prof‘ tlegal

=ent1t1es whose, existence, is primarily providing fi nancial

fa5515tance and other support to the mStltl.ltiOﬂ and 1ts','

- educat:onal program.

. - Accordingly, as of June 30 '?003 lhe Umverslty had noles
. .teceivable from the Clemson University Foundation, a related -
- _party, totaling $49 634,602, This amount mcludes the ongmal o
o loan of$35 358,188, addltional amounts totaling $12,220,744
~. Joaned sirce the fiscal year 1999 original loan, phus related
" “income and appreciation. . Funds ]oaned to the Clemson -
L Umversuy Foundation will be pald back tor the Universuy with -
b '1meresi at arate equal to that which is necessary 10 produce a
. swm-which is equal to the total return (con51st1ng of___‘_'
'."appremanon and mcome) provnded however such rate will
' The Memorandum of Understandmg o
o between L]emson Umvers;tv and the Clemson Umversny

Foundatlon 15 for a ten year penod It is rev1ewed annually '.
by both parnes and may be extended aulomatlca]ly for an

recognized in the penod in whlch the receivable is con51dered :

‘_--_'uncollectlb]e Based on pasl espenence potennai !osses are
_notdeemed matena] : i : - e
Interest.and income recewabie conswts ofamounts due AR

from the Staie Treasurer relating to hold:nns in the Stale s

internal cash manauement pool and cash mvested in vanous R

short term mvestments bv that agencv RN

~34~ S




o and related fees and unearned student revenues for the second

7 sales of football tickets, executive box’ rental fees, and procram'-*

“ - contract credit courses, and various departmenral accounts"

' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g;eNOTE4
a;CAPnALASSETs

Capztal asset actlwty for {he year ended June 30 ’)003 ;s summanzed as fol]ows :

* Capital Assets

“Beginning.
. Balarice
“July 1, 2002

Gy i e Balance
. Increases 1.7 _D.ecreases o June 30, 2003_?'.

Capﬂal assets not bcmg r.!cprecmted '
Lond and lmprcvcmcms g

' *Constructmn in progress ' :

6265386
70,284,690

Fa0zeas
25639677

90 511 277_"_ e

L B37239
© 45,866,264,

g

~Total capunl assets not bemg deprecla!ed :

. 776,550,076

46,703,503 90511277 - 32742302

Deprecmble cupmﬂ assets - e L
- “Utilities systems and ather non-structural :mpmvcmenls S
- Buildings and- improvements L L L
Computer software
) Eqmpmcnl ERIEe
T Vehlc!es

18,013,501 -

360,621,148,

11385264
12,418,339

© 23252597, .

448,470,876,
SR T 607,400
5651569 117323379

597,379 00 12,608,814 0 S

57239,006.° -
87,924,035
S 1607400
v11,588,684 -
181854

s

"Iota!;‘otht.r caputa! ussets at hlstoncal cost

302,438,352

106,147,069 0 6,323,255 602,262,066 :

'_--__Less m:cumulmed dcpn.caatlnn for: . :
- Unitities’ sxslcms and othér non-stmcluml :mprovemcms
:Bmidmgs and lmpmvcment‘i - o -
- Computer, soﬁwarc e R
_'.,'_Eqmpment S
';._'_Vch:l:le.l: v

o760

149,672,942

43T
9.881,243

UB937,4281

160,515,361

S 202,467

T 79,980,560
9,436,133

Lo 090,659,
SU10916,726 0
302,467 ST e
S 017,744 0 10,698 0
L 133300.0 000 TR 1R

e

Toi.ll accumu]ulcd deprectalmn Sl

341874467

22;3%8'903. o 3, 161,423 -'"’59 071,949 e

el Debreciahlc capna_! assels‘, et L

260,563,785

83788164 .'3’.'1 161 337_-‘.""-' 343, 190 117 P

o 3, 130.491 667_. 5ol 573109'.':’

~Capital dssets; net.

337,113,861

&: J'h 932,4191-

* % Includes current fiscal year capitalized infercst of $1.243.9847

'5fN0Tes o
 DEFERRED REVENUES

. Deferred revenuies c0n51st pnmanly of athletlc tlcl\et sa]es'

' - ; summer session dnd fall semester. These momes were colleciedf; -
- in _advance and were riot camed at June 30. 2003 S
Athletic sales and related event receipts mclude advance_' ey

'advemsmg fees. Unearned: student révenues consist mamly' L
+ of student tuition ‘and fees room and board ‘and other fees. . -
. related to’ thc seccnd surnimer: scssmn Also mcluded are' e

'_admlssmn fees for the fall semester. - R
.7 -1 Public Service Program recexpts result from letter-of crcdlt L

" drawdowns of federal apprapriations for Hatch and Smith Lever .
funds for the: Umversny ' agrlcu!rural research and extensmn ERERI
.. programs. Fees collected. i in advance for mummpal serwces

. professmnal development and commumg education courses; -

e 'compnse the remammg baiance of deferred revenues

- A'summary listing of deferred revenue follows: -~

o D'eferr'ed' R_ev_en(jes‘.'.’ :

e Alhlcnc event recemﬁ fal[ ‘:cmcslc HESLE
e ".ponson.d Tesearch advances -
'Academw and other fees=. -
Olhf.r axilian fées: ER
" Pubhc Service programs ° o
* Admission fees - fa[! sum_qu.r

" Municipat servu:es

: -__Educmlonul ngrum 5.

- 5_... '9',3'7'8,93'1 L
47880187

er.cnnd sumiter 5es:,mn

sccond SUBEREr scwnn

130,706
Tl 129,0(?'9. R
L3836
& 19,737,509,

Proféssional deve!opment I‘ees

Oliu.r

k3

'Imnl defem.d TEV enuc f




-/, NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ = - .-

L ',-'BONDS PAYABLE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION PAYABLE AND NOTES PAYABLE

. 'Bonds Payable _ ; ' o
At June 30, 2003 bonds payable con51sted of the followmg

o Boh_d's' P'éy'a_b_le'-_ i

Interest . . ‘Ma_t:u'rity i ‘Balance . ."'.'Deb't Retired in - -
L : ST R  “*Rate . o Dates” oo June 30, 2003 ¢ - Flscal Year 2003
L _Gcneral Obhgunon Bnnds o - - e T T - SR
. .‘Bonds dated 5/01/92 (Series 1992B)_ RO SLTe.00% CLUe/12007 0 T8 0 L420,000 008 305 000 S
Pt Bonds dnted 4/01/95. (Series 1995A) . . S05.10-5.25% CBM12010 T b 765,000 0 L 200,000 s
' "7 Bonds dated 6/01/97 (Series 1997B) " COU4.60-480% ¢ CE/Z010T A S TST00,0000 . TS25,000
. :Borids dated 7/01/02 (Series 2002B} - Sl 3.5-4373% 62017 21,580,000 . T3BS000 7
’ :B:()_nd_s_'dn}e‘d 3/01/03 (Series 2003B) .- .- : j‘-'-"2l_5_{')-_4_._5_0=% s COMI2007 T 12,000,000 o L e
©-" Bonds dated 3/01/98 (Series 1998) -4.10-4.50% 0 - §12011 T 7 5,685,000 - - 590,000
'":AunhnryRevenncBonds . b R L R St . : . R S T
. Ronds dated 1/01/98 - (Series 1998A) S 0 4.625-4,75% 5712002 Do 17,625,000 1,665,000 1
: __Bonds_ dated 5_.{0_1_.’00 (Series:2000) - ceo 3.50-6.25% o CHAL2005 020,850,000 T 770,000
S e e ol Lo : R “T38 475,000 N S
: .-iAl-'l_liclic F:icil_ilies'.i.{c:ven{:c Bﬂnﬁs' e Sl D . L FP TR
" ;- Bonds dated 6/01/01 (Serics-2001). i 4. 0—4 7'-" e AR08 0T 18,975,000 985,000
*"-Bonds dated 6/01/03 (Series 2003) . 0o __3 0-3 ﬂﬂ:/n T UUAN/20230 T 7000000 s s e
Gl e S .725.975.000 0§ 7 3625,000

BT 2600000 T

Bonds 1ssued by lhe Umversm' 1nclude certain restnctwe L

o covenams Genera] Ob]];,atlon Bonds of the State are backed -
2 by the full faith, ‘credit and i taxing power of the State. Tuition_ :
.+ and matncuianon fees paid to'the Un:verszt) are’ p]BdEEd for :
~“the payment of principal and interest.on these bonds. - Plant ./
Improvement Refunding Bonds are limited obhgauons of the
o “University payable so]ely from, and secured by a pledge of a -
‘. special student fee for plantimprovements: Auxiliary Revenue
-_Bonds are payabfe sofeiv ﬁ'om and secured by @ pledﬂe of
. Teyenues of the Umvers;ty $ housing facilities, ‘bookstores, -

dmmg servzces parking and vendinﬂ and from additional funds

- from the academic “University” fee imposed by the Board of -
- Trustees. Athletic Fac:llties Revenue Bonds are puyab]e solely.
“{rom the net revenues of the Unwersuty sAthiet;c Departmenl o
©and the gross recenpts from the |mpos:t10n of any admlssmns -

'- _fee and any special student fee.

: "The Unlver:;lty purchased abond i Insurance pohcy payab]e L
S to the bond trustee for the Plant lmprovement Refunding Bonds,
-"-'Senes 1998; the Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A and Series
1 2000; and the Ath]enc Facﬂmes Revenue Bonds Serles 7001_ :
2-+and 2003, In addiuon a surety. bond ‘was purchased for. the -
Y Athletic Fac111t1es Revenue Bonds, Senes 2001 and 2003. The o
- . insurance ‘guarantees payment of pnnmpal and mterest untll :
aif debi has been retnred Lo - - -

“or aﬁer May 1,

-7 "7 Tuition fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 were . -
'-$4 843,240 which results in a legal arinual debt service limitat . :
June 30, 2003 of $4.358, 916. This amount is equal to 90% of" Sl

tuition fees collected for the prior fiscal year.- o

"The series 1995A General Obligation Bonds matﬁnng on

Zand after June I, 2006, are subject {0 redempuon in whole or

: 2005, and all subsequent payment datesin - .

- inverse chrono]ogtcal ‘order of maturity, at the optlon of the "+
State of South Carolma af. the following redemptlon prices: . o

- June. 1,2005 and December 1, 2005 at 102 percent; June 1, e
~2006and Decemberl ’?006 at ]0] percem June 2007 andj pnm

l_thereaﬁer atpar.. i -

“ " The séries 1997B Genera} Obhuatmn Bonds maturmg -

in part on June 1,

on and after June 1, 2008, are, sublecl [ redemptlon at the

_ opllon ‘of the State; in whole orin part batifin part, ininverse .~
) chronologlcal order of maturity,-on and aﬁer June 1, 2007, i
and on all subsequent bond payment dates at the followmg R

4'redempt10n prices; S
102 percent; June 1, 2008 and December 1, 2008 at 101

percent June 1, 2009 and thereafter at par, -, : S

- The series 1998AAumhary Revenue Bonds maturmu on 7

2008 are subject to redemptien at the opnon of -

the’ Unwersﬁy on and after May 1,2007 in whale or in pari at "o,

'any nme upun 30 days notlce al a dec!mmg premlum Aﬁer _; :

June 1; 2007 and December 1, 2007 at




| '.‘_Mayl

o June 1, 2012 throvgh May 31,

B 'NOTEé Toj_simncm venews

. May 1 2007 the Auxr];ary Revenue Bonds can be redeemed .
- at101% throughApnl 30,2008 a.nd fromMay 1,
~ April 30, 2009 at 100.5% of par Aﬁer Aprll 30 '?009 they'

~can'be. redeemed at par.-

e “The Series 1998 Plant Improvement Refundmg Bonds are e
o not sub_;ect to redemptlon prior to maturity.. - .

- " The Senes 2000 Auxiliary. Revenue Bonds rnatunng pnor o

e to Mey 1,2010 shall’ not be subject to redemption; however,:

o they. sha}l be ‘subject to redemptlon prior to matunty onor .

©after May 1, 2010 at the: DpthI’l of the Unlvers1ty on and aﬂer

2009, in whole or in part at any time; and if in part in _:'
- those maturities de51gnated by the Umver51ty and by. Iot w1th1n 0

“© " a'maturity, upon-30 days notice at the pnnerpal amount thereof:

- " and the interest accrued on such prmcnpal amount to the date..

fixed for redemptlon ‘plus the followmg redemptlon premlum

: ‘May 1,2009 throngh April 30,2010 at’ 101 pereent and May

o 1 7010 and thereafter.at 100 pércent.

- "The: Serles 200% Athletrc Facilities Revenue Bonds' B
: matunng prior to’ May 1,:2012 shall not be’ sub_]eet to
L redemptron however theyshall be subjectto redemptron prior::
2011 at the option of the"
2012, in whole orim part for the:
- principal amount thereof and the interest’ Accrued on such -
“ - priticipal amount to th_e_dat_e ﬁxed for redemptr_o_n. p]us the_.'
. 2011 through April -
-'30,2012at 101 percent and May ],20]7 and thereaﬁer at 100
percent :
s Dunng the f'scal year endmg June 30, 2003 the State off
e South Carolina rssued ofr behalf of the Umversrty Generai'
s Ob[ruation State Instrtutmn Bonds in the amount. of-'__-
- $22,165,000; The proceeds of these bonds are to be used to:
(1) partially pay for. certain. :mprovements to:the. Fll\e_ :
g = -Recreatron/We]lness Center ‘to. include the addrtron of
S appromrnately 60 000 square feet for new basketball courts;,

o maturlty on or after May 1,
- Umvers1ty on or after ‘May 1,

 “following redemption premium: May 1, 2

 the redesign and reconstrucuon of men’s-and women’s locker

" rooms and the renovatlon ofthe historic f“eldhouse ‘and, in*
. addition; renovatmg various: ofi- campus l'aellmes ‘to hiouse -
e actmtres being dlsplaced by the Fike’ project; (2) to replace;’
- the enure roof’ng system for L]ttlejohn Coliseum'at the

Unlversny 'The Series 200”8 General Obligation Bonds -
B matunng on and after June 1;
- in'whole or in part; at any time in any order: of matunty tobe”

" détermined by the’ State; on. or after June 1,72012, at the"_' :

= redemption prices e\pressed as'a percentage of the pnnc:pal -
- amount to be redeemed at the following redemption: prices:: .

2013 at’101 pereentand_.l_une Lo

2008 through .-

i2013 and thereafter at 100 percent The Senes 7002B General i i
Obligation: Bonds- are secured by a pledge of the fulk: faith, - RS
- credit @nd taxing power of the State and by a pledge of the'_. e

tuitlon fees of the Un1versrty

- During the fiscal year endmg June 30, 2003 the State of
s : South Carolina also issued on behalf of the Umversuy General_ i
__'Obllgatron State: Institution Bonds in the amount of "~ [
*+ $12,000,000. The proceeds of these bondsare to be used to. . *
'partlally pay for the costs of acquisition of d parcel of land- - =
located in the C]emson Research Park, and the c:onstrucuon of 7.
_'__-“'one oF more research. Eaboratory buildings;. or other "~
[improvernents, and fixtures, furnishings, equipment and T
;maehmery to be, lnstalled The Series 20038 .General .* -

_ Obllgatlon Bonds maturmg on and aﬂer June 1; 2013 are_ TR

- subject to Tedemption, in whole or in ‘part; af any time inany. .
order of matunty to be’ determmed by the: State, on or aﬂer_ i
June 1,2012, at the redempt:on prlces expressedas apercentaoe. L
- of the prmmpa] amount to be redeemed at the followmg B
_redemptlonprlces June 1,2012 through May3l,2013 at101. - v
. percent and June 1, 2013-and thereafter at 100 percent.” The SN

“i Series 2003B General Obllgauon Bonds are secured bya’
pledge ‘of the full faith; credit and: taxmg power of the State o

: and by a piedﬂe of the tuition fees of the Um\fersny SR
Durrng ‘the - fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, Clemson L

Unwers:ty 1ssued Athletrc Facilities Revenue Bonds Senes; =

2003, in the amount of $7,000,000. The: proceeds of. these L

' ‘bonds are being’ used to pamal]y fund the cost of renovatrons-_ ca

‘to the Umversrty s, varsity: baseball facrlmes and for oL
* " construction of an indoor track facility, as well.as the cost of SR
-__archltectural and engineering. fees: for the’ desrgn and- L
: development phiase of reriovatjon 6f and 1mprovements to the: A
‘West end zone of Memorial Stadium. The Series 2003 Athiletic = <
Facilities Revenue Bonds maturing priorto May I 2014 shall - St
not be sub_]ectto redempt;on however they shall'be sub;ectto S
" redemption prior to maturrty on or after May 1. 7014 atthe ™ oL
‘option of the Board of Trustees on or after May 1,2013; in L A
‘wholeor in part f'orthe prmc:palamount thereotand the mterest PR L
*acerued on such principal amount to the date fixed: lor_" Pl
redemptlon plus the following redemptron premium: May 1, o0 7
2013 through April 30, 2014 &t 101 percent and May 1,2014: -~~~ "
2013, are subject to redemptlon .~ and thereafier at.100 percent. . The Series 2003 Athletic :* = = *
" Facilities Revenue Bonds are. pavable trom and secured by'a- SRR
pledge of. the net. revenues of the Umversaty 5 Ath]etrez-. L

- _Department and'the gross receipts from the imposition by the =1

Umversrty ot any admrss:ons fee and any specral student fee




++;, NUIES IO FINANGIAL STAIEMENTS ;-

All of the bonds are payab]e in semlannual mslallments plus mterest Arnounts mcludmg mterest requu'ed to eomp]ete

L payment ef the auxﬂlary revenue bonds and athlenc fac;lmes revenue bond obilgatmns as ef June 30, 2003 areas foi}ows RN

B Auxlllary and Athlet:c Facﬂltles Revenue Bonds

o Pnnmpa! '_ 7 interest . Totai

Yeaandngune30 vl T T e e e
2004 0§ '3,595,000 U8 30415176 8- 6736 176
2005 07 3.700.000 . 2,098,471 L 6,698,471
272006 e U3.890,000 0 2,826,665 0 . 6,716,665 -
S2007 T 4,100,000 2,646,009 1T 6,746,009 L
2008 o T4320,000 0 2,455,478 0 6, TI5ATR
..2009 threugh 2013_',-'; Si%.0.024,585,000 0 8,987,980 . ¢ 33,572,980 ..
: ,;20]4thr0ugh2018 S0 15,105,000 2,671, 525_ - 7, 776,525 0
0 22019 through 2023 °- 0 115155,000 - 734,175 5,889,175 e
L 564450000 % 26,461,479 $_99 011,479 .

b -Plant_':I_rfr:lp:roueuieht.R_efundir‘ig Bonds . .

AT ., Pringipal |- nterest .. " Total i
Yﬂﬂfﬁndmglunem e e T
22004 o s $ 615,000 .8 245,982 % 0 B60.982 ¢ L e
005 T 6350000 220,768 855,768 o
S 2006 e 665,000 194,415 839415 7
2007 ;5 690,000 - 166,485 .7 856485 LT o
o008 Lo, 000~ 1371600 857,160 i
'7009through'?0]l S 2.360,0000, T 215550 0 2,575, 550“5'_‘:;_" ‘
R L $ 56850000 $ 1,180,360 $ -6.865360 -

Amoums mcludmg mteresl requlred fo complele paymem of the General Obhgalmn Bonds as of June 30 ?00.: are as

S follows R

: Ge"e"'a' Ob'iQaiiQh 'E:;o'n_ds'

Principal - Ihtereet' i .ﬁ'-:' Total & T

YearEnd;ngJunein LT AT .
S2004° 0§ 2,310,000 § 1, 731 559___' $ 4, 041 559: S
L2005 e S 2405000 0 1,640,329 0 4,045329. 0
";"'.‘-'2006_- 02,500,000 1,544_389,.__-_;4,044_,_3_89_; B
7007' ;;-_--'_--_'“'veosooo CTI1A41,120 0 4,046,120
S 2008 -"-"2,710 000 " 1,332,530 4,042,530
2009 threugh 7013_ 115,310,000 - 4,910,792° 20,220,792
"'-'."'?014throuah 9017 T 14,673_000_ 101,554,530 0 16,179.530
2 : R =-_:=-_.:4;.42,465,000,:= $ 14,155,249 °§ 56,620,249

R Amounts mcludmg mterest requu'ed to comp]ete payment of the P]ant Impruvement bends as of ]une 30 2003 are as o
"':_-foIIOWS ' o Cl : : '
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_ In pnor years the Umverstty defeased eertam bonds by placrng the proceeds of' new bonds inan n'revocable trust to prowde el

' for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordtngly, the trust account assets and tlie habrhty for these defeased "

. bonds are not mcluded inthe Unlversrty 5 ﬁnancral statements. ‘At June 30, 2003, $165,000 of bonids outstandtng are conzndered: S

2 defeased ‘The University 3 was in compliance with all apphcable bond covenants as of June 30, 2003. IR o -

L The Unlversny reported prmcrpal rettrements and mterest expendltures related to the bonds as follows for the year ended_- Tl hE
June30 70{}3 ] . " C TR o . s . .

Pri:n'cipa_' ﬁR,etsrgnierie ar'{d'_lnt‘e'rest éxi’:'endit_iiteé.":_'.[.3;_-. RN

LU BondType - Principal . interest. ST
.: General Obhgatron Bonds.: .o § 1, 615 000§ 1,529,844 0 o

- Plant Improvernent Refundmg Bonds 5 © 590, 000 O 2856497
E Auxiliary. Revenue Bonds. @ e 2_43_-,_ 000 2,157,139 : Pl

o .'_;;_’Athletlc Fac1litres Revenue Bonds f'; ©.985,000 - 870,801 . T B L T

s 5625000 $ 4823433

= _:_Notes_Payable? % i

ee_et_is*e'rv_i'cé _Na’t.-i.-'.e;, payapref e {; e

Notes Payable

At June 30, 2003 notes payable con51sted of the followmg

S Note sDated  interest Tk Matunty Ameunt.
Fu‘st Umona Nattonal Bank 1/30/98 " 4.796% S 201420050 $ 105,700
CU Foundanon (CUP) 63003 '4.25_01%- 6!30/')008 600,000

sTotals o T e M

_ The Note Payab]e dated I/30/98 is under the State Treasurer ] Oﬂ' ice Master Lease Program whteh is t“ nanced by F:rstl
! Umon Nattona] Bank F1rst Umon Natronal Banl\ retams a secunty mterest 1n the eqmpment and vehtcles purchased in these_ RIS
T notes g : L - : .
R " During the ﬁseal year endmg June 30 003 the Umversrty entered mto a [oan aa.reement w:th the Clemson Umversrty L
- Foundation whereby the Foundation loanied the University $600,000 to construct anew building at the Clemson Apparel Reséarch R

U Facrltty The loan currently bears interest at 4.25 pereent per annum on the tnpaid balance.” On December 30,2003 and each. : *
- semiannual payment daté thereafier, the 1nterest rate will ad_;ust automanca]ly for the next succeeding mterest payment to the then =

prevathng Prime Rate. Principal and interest rs payable n semi- annua] mstallments of $67,233 5’7 for 5 years assummcr 4 73

percent throughout the term of the loan,

_Future payments on the note payable are. to.be ﬁmded frorn futnre operatmg revenues T
The aggregate debt serwce payments due on the notes payable at June 30 "003 are as follows E

. Principal "~ Interest. . Tofal L

YearEndnguneJG R S B
SonT2004 0 81617230 0 800 28,800 8 190,523 L T
FU2005 s T 168957 210566 0 e 190,523 0
COUAE2006 o U T19 788 6T T 134,467 T
: 20070 SUU124,9330 9534 134467
S 200850 e 130,099 L 4168 TI34A6T
Total Obhgatlons a8 705,7000 $.0 78747 % TRAAAT

C~3e~

_ TotaI prmc:pal pard on notes payable was $49 " l O for the year ended J urie 30 7003 Total mterest expense for notes payable S
T was$:>863 : : = SR i



+~NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . . oo

= NOTE 7.
- LEASE OBLIGATIONS

. The Unwersrtv is obligated under vanous operatlng leases fer the use uf real propertv (land burldlnes ufﬁce spaee) and S

i equ]pment and also is ebllgated under capltal leases and 1nstaliment purchase agreements for the acqulsztmn of real propeny All i
o cap}tal and operating leases are with parties out51de state government. - : f :

- Future commitments for caprtal leases (which here and on the Statement of Net Assets 1nc1ude other mstallment purchase‘ 5 : '
' agreements) and for noncaneellable Dperatlng leases havmg remammg terms 1n excess nf one. year as of June 30 2003 ‘wereas ' -

o ‘-follows

o ' Capital and Operatin'g_ Lea's_éi_Cprnmi__t‘rn"en't_s" :

e Caprlal Leases ::'.* Opeml:ing .Lea's'és' _ﬁ. PR

Year Endmg June 30 SRR
“2004 - $1471 479 $ 417 9.37_ o
-‘”Jyzoos_.“.__ o . _41471349_“:*jw., 270971 0
S2006 T 1,471,349 . 231,479 o
2007 1,471,349 177,150
2008 802,939 .' 44—983- i
s 7009 through 2011 - _ S 1,531,250 w i
: Total minimum lease payments e 8.219,665 $ 1 142,525 e
“Less: Interest L 1,633,000 . _—_ o
"~ Less: Executory Costs =~ " 217475

S :_‘;pr;nc__;pa; outstanding S :' $6,369,190 - _'.;:_'_';

s Cap:tai Leases

~Capital leases : are generally payable m mstallments rangmg ﬁ'om monlhly to annually and have terms e)\pmng in, varmus e '

PR years between 2007 and 2011. Expendltures for fi scal year. 2003 were §1, 471,462, of which $439,520 represented interest and

~-$32,451 represented executory costs. Total principal paid on eap1tal Ieases was $954 112 for the fi seal year ended June 3(} ?003 IS

. Interest rates range from 5.50 percenl to 7.58 percent. : -
e The followme isa summary of the carrymg values of assets held under eaprtal leases at June 30, 2003

‘ ﬂlseet_s_: HeldUnder Caprtal Lease T

' Value at Lease " Accumulated -

N D o Inceptlon . Depreciatjon " lll\let..:. -
Bmmms _ ggmgm;%;ﬁvjnwsm,ﬁrsn%;mﬁr, s
%mm_g~*}“siam&ﬂo_:$immﬂij$&m&wa“jﬁr;

S Certarn caplta] leases pmwde for renewal and/()r purchase
- .options. Generally purchase opuons at bargam pnees of one_
o dollar are exercisable af the’ exprratlon of the lease terms: . -~

“The Umversrty had two capital leases W1th related entities

in the current fiscal year. In March 1988, the Umversn"y entered :
" into a capital lease of $925, 000 at 7.57 percent with the -
. Clemson University Research Foundation (CURF),a relaled' ;
S party whereby the Umversny leases land and a bur]dmg fora '
- twenty year perlod that began April 1988 and expires May i
o2 2008 (Note 13). The oulstandlnﬂ llabllny atJune 30,2003, on
5 this capztal lease was- $355,489. The Umversxty at its opnon:
R may termmate the lease and purchase CURF s 1ntere5t for 1he___.

“and the payment of $1.

‘unamortized principal balaricé and the payment of $1. In" - .
" December 1998, the University entered info a capital lease of . "+
]'-f$'7 792, 453 at 5,50 pereent with- the Clemson Umversrly_ R
" Research Foundatron (CURF) whereby the University leases
‘@ bu1ldmg for.a nine year penod that began December 1998, .
and expires December 2007 (Note 13); .The oulstandrng" ERERT
liability at June 30, 2003, on this caprtal lease is $1,323,001, © ¢
‘The Unwersuy at its option- may ferminate. the lease and A
"purchase CURF smterest forthe unamemzed prmerpal balance R
“The lease’ payments for fiscal year B
”_7003 through 2007 are computed at a rate of 3.625%. U
The Umversuy also has two addrtrona! eapltal rea] property o o
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leases wrth unrelated partres In December ]986 the Unrversrty"‘ -
“entered intd a capital lease of $5, 064 395at 75 percent fora. -
_ computer building wheteby the Unwersrty leases a building -

expenses of $724 092 for oﬁice copler oontmgent rentals on a' _'
cost-per-copy ba515 S . . '

for a twenty-year period that began ] Décerber 1987, and expires .~ . e
Decernber 2007." The out_standmg__lrabllrty at June 30, 2003 © B

for this capital lease was $1,765,398.

.. University entered mto a capltal lease of $S 186, 861 at 758 .
* percent whereby the Unwersrty leases a bmldmg for a twenty -

year period that began June 1991, and expires June2011. The - L : -
“Board’ maintains four mdependent defined benefit plans and . -

issues.its own publicly available Comprehensive Annual - . " -
Financial Report (CAFR) which'includés financial statements -
. and- requlred supplementary information. - *A-copy of the -

" separately issued CAFR may be obtained by writing to the

" outstanding liability at June 30, 2003; on this capltal lease was’ -

- 82,925,305. The Unwers;ty may cancel the lease agreements
..at the end of any fi fiscal year \ when sufficient appropnatlons "
" revenues, income, grants or other fundlng sources: are ot
*“available, 'The University has the option to- purchase the -

: property. for the redemption price and the payment of §1. ©
. However, in the event of cancellation, the Umversrtyhas agreed_“ ‘
not to purchase lease or'rent similar: facilities for ‘one year - -
. followmg such cancellatlon The Umversrty ig responsrb]e for. .
o all operatmg costs suoh as reparrs utlhtles and msurance for o

& thls ]ease

s '_Operatmg Leases

Lo The Unlver51ty ] noncancellab!e operatmg leases havmg
. 'remalmng terms of more than one year expire in various fiscal
- years from 7003 through 7007 “Certain operatmg leases - .
provrde for renewal options | for penods from one to three years . -
. at their fair rental value a the time of renewal All agreements-"'.
o are eaneelable if the State of South Carolma does not provide -

L adequate funding but that is con51dered a remote possrblltty .

"~ Inthe normal colirse of business, operalmo Jeases are generally- R
" renewed of replaced by other leases Operatmg leases are o

- generally payable ona monthlv basis.

~In- 1996, the Umversrty entered tnto a real propertv' )

S year.

" The current lease exténds throunh June, 7003

aereement the Umversrtv pard CURF $39 746 m the current'

: \fear

R In ?OOI the Umversrty entered mto d real property-
S operatmg lease with CURF, a related” party for office space.
-+ The ‘current lease extends through. July; 2006, Under this . -
L ttﬂreement, the Umversrty pard CURF Sﬂ 0001 1n the current-
S Noncancellable operatmﬂ lease expend:tures n ”003 were'-_-_‘ :
- 8490 902 for real property and $700 955 for office equlpment S
: " The Umversrtv reports these costs m functlonal expendtture"
i Catf.’UGTIES i : : :
L Besrdes the real property operatmg Ieases wrth the_
- Clemson University Research Foundation mentioned above;
R the Umversn}, ladno other operatmg leases wrth related partresr

Hime the current fiscal year. -

In June 1991, the."

L In 2000, the Umversrtv entered mto :3 real property-: 1
operatlrrU lease with CURF, a related “party, for office space. -
Under this

NOTE 8

'RETIREMENT PLANS

The Retirement Division of the State Budget and Control i

Retlrement D1v151on, 202 Arbor Lake Dnve Columbxa, South

Carolina'29223." Furthermore, the Division and the' four ..~ -
- pension plans are mcluded rn the CAFR of the State of South S
"Carolina :

The ma_]orlty of employees of the Un1versrty are covered' PR
R by a retirement plan through the South Carolina Retirement - .
-+ - System (SCRS) a ‘cost-sharing’ rnultlple emp]oyer defined " -

=l - benefit pension plan administered by the Retirement Division, " o
. a public employee. retrrement system. Generally all State =~
: ‘employees are required to participate in and contribute to the:
SCRS as a ‘condition of employmetit uiiless exempted bylaw. o
' as provided in Section 9-1-480 of the South. Carolina Code of . ", =
Laws, This plan provrdes retirement annuity- benefits as well ' R
as disability; cost of living adjustment, death and group—ltfe- P

rnsurance beneﬁts to ellglbie employees and retirees.

“Under the’ SCRS employees are eligible: fora full servrce_" i

3 rettrement annuity upon reaching-age 65 or comp]etlon of 28

L 'years credited service regardless of age.: The benefit formula =
for full benefits effective since July.1, 1989, for the SCRSis- " "

y operatmg lease: with’ the- Clemson. University. Research;-'.;"'.l 82 percent of an employee s average final’ compensatlon SR

e ; Foundatron (CURF) ‘2’ related party, for office & space. The .
current lease exterids throuLh February, '7004 Under this - -
'::_aﬂreement the Umversrtv patd CURF’S]O" l73 m the current- -

§ mult]phed by the number of years of credrted service, Early -
;) retirement options with reduced benefits are available as early .~
'as age :)5 Employees are vested fora deferred annurty dfter 0
= fin Ve years ‘earned service (E' ve years eamed eﬂ'ectwe January’ s e
001) and quahfy for a survivor’s benefit upon completron EERETR

of 15 years credited service. Effective January. 1, 2001

_ disability, annutty benefits are payable to emp]oyees totallyand” ="
¢ -permanently drsabled provrded they have a minimum of fi Ve
- years earned service (this requirement does not app]y ifthe "7
:_'__dlsabrhty is the result of a job-retated mjury) A group-life:
. insurance. benefit equal to-an employee’s annual rate of .
compensatron is payable upon the death of an acuve employee L
' w:th a m1mmum ofone year ofcredrted semce , SR
(7 Effective January-1, 2001, Section 9-1-2210 of the south__."'j:
' 'Carohna Code of Laws allows employees eligible for service .
' Tetirement t partlcrpate in the Teacher and Employee Retention L]
: Incentrve (TERI) Program. TERI partlmpants may retire and. - RO 2
- begin aecumulatmg retrrement benefits o' a. deferred basis
- without termmatmg employment for up to five, years Upon o
" 'termination of emp]oyment or at the end.of the TER] penod FRIT
' whichever is earlier; participarits will begin recelvmg monthly. . o
<7 service retrrement benef‘ ts which. wr!l includé any cost ofliving - .. R

]n the eurrent fiscal vear Clemson Umverstty mcurrecl o ad_]u_strne’__lt_s_ g!f_aﬂ_:l?d._d‘lf_'“? “??__.TE_RI_ P?r}?d BE_C."’USE
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SR parttcnpants are consndered retlred durtng the TERI perlcd they L
" do.not make SCRS contrlbuttcns do not earn service credit,

o -and are mehglble to receive group. hfe insurance benef ts- or' S
S -dlsablllty retirement benefits. '

Since July 1,1988, emp]oyees parttcnpatmg in the SCRS'

- have been requnred to contribute ‘6 percent of eligible
Effective July 1,°2002, the empioyer
" contribution rate became 10.70. percent which includesa3.15 . -
) percent surcharge to fund retiree health and dental i insiirance -
o .coverage. The University’s actual contrlhutlons to the SCRS

.. for the three most recent fiscal years endrng June 30, 2003,

2002, ‘and” 2001, were. apprcmmately -$10, 846, 000,

o ' -'order or the protecttcn or preventmn and control of property"',_' :
Do destruction by fire are requtred 10 participate in and contribute

to the System asa condition of emp!oymem This p!an prov1des

‘annuity benef" ts as well as disability and ﬂroup -life insurance -
S .In ‘addition, -
e participating. employers- in the :PORS conmbute to the -
: ' ‘accidental death fund which. provndes annu:ty benef‘ts o
L ‘beneficiaries cfpohce off'cers and firemen killed'in the actual s
' '-‘perfcnnance of their dutles ‘These benefits are mdependent"

‘benefits. to ehglbte empioyees and retirees.

"' of any other retirement benefits avallab]e to the beneficiary.

.. Employees covered under PORS are ehulb]e foramonthly
y 'pensmn payable at age 35 witha minimum of five years service -
. or.25 years credited service regard]ess of age.
"emp]oyees who have five years of credited service priorio age '.:

o :55 can, retire yei defer receipt of benefits until. they reachage™
BN LR A member is vested for a deferred annuity with five years .
;" service: The benefit formula for full benefits effective since
“ . July 1,1989, for the PORS is 2.14 percent of the employee’s

: «-average final sa]ary mu!tlp]led by the number of years of_

*credited service: Disability annuity henefits and the group-

‘- life insuranice benefits for PORS members are similar to those -
- " for SCRS partlt:lpants Accidental death benefits provide a .
o :"mcnthly pension of 50 ‘percent ‘of the member 5 budszeted :
S 'compensatton at the time of death. . L o

" SineeJuly i 1988 emp]oyees parttmpatme in the PORS

*have been requtred to contribute 6.5 percent of all’"
_ 2002, the empluver:
"+ contribution rate became 13.43 percent which, as forthe SCRS,
s mcluded a 3.15 percent surcharge. . The University’s: actual -
R contnbutlons 1o the PORS for the years ending June 30,2003,

: “were approximately $253,000, $263,000,-and .~
1 8256,000, respectlvelv, and equaled the required contributions -

“1of10.3 percent (excluding the surcharge) for each year, Also, . '
s -the Umversxty paid employer group-life i msurance contribtitions
. .of $4,919 and accidental death- insurance contnbut}ons of
. 'ﬂ'$4 919 in the current f'scal year for. PORS parucrpants The :

'.-'-ccmpensatlon Effectlve .]uly 1,

o '?002, 2001,

1n addition,

':rate for each cf these msurance beneﬁts is. 20 percent of _
-compensation. - '

-~ The amounte pald by the Umversrty for pensmn group- .

“life i insurance, and accidental death benefits are reported.as .. =
- 'employer contributions. expenchtures within the applicable " -
functional expendlture categcnes to whlch the related salanes Lo
'are charged ) |

Article X, .Sectron ]6 of the Scuth Carollna Constltutlon. .

. -_requnres ‘that all State-operated retirement systems be funded - -
. ‘ona sound actuarial basis, Title 9.of the South Carcllna Code o
of Laws of 1976, as amended, prescribes requirements re]atmg. e
< oto membershlp, benefits, and employee/employer contributions
810, 964 000 and $10,830,000;, respectlvely, and equaled the . . '
© ' required conmbutlons of 7.55 percent (excluding the surcharge)'
-+ for each year. “Also, the University paid employer group-]lfe‘_'
~insurance contrlbutrons of approxrmately $215,476 in the'-f_'
' current fiscal year at the rate of .15 percent of compensatton
"The. Scuth Carolina Police Officers Retirement System
' ’_(PORS) isa cost—sharmg mu]t]pie employer defined benefit
- . public employee retlrement p]an Generally all full- nme L

for each pension plan, Employee and employer contribution .

. rates to SCRS (and PORS) are acmanally deterrnmed The - -
5 surcharges to fund retiree hea]th and dental i msurance are not e
‘part of the. actuarlally estabhshed rates,: Annual benéfits, E
payable maonthly for life, are based on length of service.and on o
-average final compensatmn (an annuahzed average of the
-emp]oyee 5 hlghest 12 consecutive quarters of ccmpensauon) S

The. Systems do not make separate measurements of assets . - -
and pension liabilities for.individual employers.. Under Title =+
: '9 of the South Carc]ma Coede of Laws ‘the Umversuy s lability - 5 L
: .under the plans is limited to the amount of contributions (stated -~ = e
' ’:,'.as a perceniage of covered payroll) established by the State =" -
Budget and CcntrclBoard Therefore, the Umversrty s liability .
under. the pensmn p]ans is hmrted to the contnbutmn L
'.requtrements for the apphcab!e year from amounts apprcpnated .
“in the South Carolina Appropnatlcn ‘Act.and amounts from -

other apphcabte TEVEnue sources. Acccrdmg!y the UmVersrty'

Tecognizes no contmgent hablhty for unfunded costs assccxated
. with participation in the plans, - Ty
Al retirement, empIcyees partrcrpatmg, in the SCRS or_'- S
PORS receive additional service credit (at a rate of ’70 days .

equals one month of serv1ce) for up to 90 days fc or accumutated_ 3

: unused sick leave.. _ :
“Certain State employees may e]ect © partu:tpate in the LTk
Opno‘nal Retirement Program (ORP), a defined. contribution 7
- plan. The ORP was established in 1987 under Title 9, Chapter . "
17, of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The ORP provides .
o 'retlrement and death beneﬁts throueh the purchase of individual .* *
- fixed or vartable anmnty contracts which are 1ssued to, and. v
- ‘become the property of, the pamclpants The State assumes - =
"no liability for this plan other than for payment ofccntrrbuttons LT
‘1o designated insurance ccmpames : _ i
- ORP participation is limited to facult}r unc!assd‘ed and S
classu" ed employees not in temporary or part-t “time. permanent' e
_posmons who meet afl ehurbrluy requirements fcrmembership_ e
~in the SCRS. E1ecuon into either SCRS or ORP must be made-- .-+
within thclr first fifteen days of emp]oyment A State ORP.. P
“participant could have, irévocably elécted to- Jjoin the SCRS
~ during the open énrollment period of Jannary 1 = March 31,000
:2003 during the fifth annlversary of the person 's mma]_ '
'_enro]]ment in the State ORF, EER T
*Under State ]aw contnbutlons to the ORP are reqmred at o i
the same’ rates as for the SCRS, 7.55 percent p}us the retiree.. .-
'.surcharge 0f3.15 from the employer in fiscal year 2003, 0L ey
Certam of the Umversrty 5 empioyees have elccted to be



o NOTE 9.

T EMPLOYEE BENEFITS : X
' ‘In accordance with the South Carolma Code of Laws and ke
. 'the annual’ Approprlanon ‘Act, the State. of South Carolina..*
R 'prowdes certain health care, dental, and life i insurance benef ts:. =
IR ¢ certain ‘active and rettred State: employees and certain ..
N ‘survwmg dependents ofrenrees -All'permanent | full: time and .-
' . Certain permanent part«tnne employees of the Umversxty are
L el1g1ble to. receive these benefits. _ i
- - employment health and dental benefits to employees who retire i
- from State service or who terminated with at least 20 years of . -.NOTE 10
. _State serwce who meet ghe of ‘more of the: El!g_.,ibl]]ty'
L reqmrements such as’ age length of service; and hire, date.” ..
. Generally those who Tetire must have at least' 10 years of "
o fxret:rement service: crecht to’ qualify for these’ State-funded - -
. benefits, Benefts are effective at date ofretlrement when the.
5 '_'-_employee is ehglble for retiremeént benefits. | ENE

" . These benefits are provided through annual appropnahons ‘
; by the General Assembly to the. Umvers;ty for its’ actwe'.'_;'
a emp]oyees and to the State. Budoet and Control Board for all:
B _partielpatmo State retsrees e\cept the pomons funded throutvh L
oo thepension surcharge and provided from other applicable fund.
7 -sources of the Umversny for its active employees whio are not - -

" The State " employment

- NoTEs'To_ FINANCIA__L'sTATemgnTs.‘_; i

e eovered under optlonal retirement plans For the fiscal year S
 total contribution requirements to the ORP were apprommately o

T 83,962, 000 (excludmg the surcharge) from the University as -
g 'empioyer and $3,149, 000 from its employees z as plan members.

_ _Employee. contnbutlons of 6. percent, ‘and 5 percent of the L
“employer’ conmbutlon was remitted directly to the respective -

L 'annmty policy pro\uders The balance of the emp]oyer portion L
.7 was remitted to the Retirement Dlvmon of the State Budget -
- ‘and Control Board, - The obhgatlon for payment of benef ts.

res:des wnth the msurance compames

POSTEMPLOYMENT AND OTHER

ﬁmded by State- General Fund appmpnat]ons

Fnances health and dental plan benet‘ts on a pay as+ you 50-_ :

: ba51s R

hvmg) mcreases to. retirees.

"The State’ provides Post- : B

S addmon ‘the State’ Genera] Assembly penodleally'-

' d1rects the Retirerhent Systems to pay’ supplemental (cost of = - L
Such increases-are: primarily = . -
funded' from Systems earnings; however, @ portion-of the’: .-\
 required amount is appropriated from the State General Fund'-' !

annually for the SCRS and PORS benef ts..

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

Several opttonai deferred compensatlon plans are avallab]e-'- L

to State employees and emplayers of its polmcal subdivisions. -

Cerfain employees ofthe University have elected to participate. - L
The mu]tlp]e employer plans; created under lntemal Revenue .~ "
%7 Code Sections 457, 401(k); and 403(]:») are administered by ©

third part;es and are not: mc]uded i the Comprehenstve Annualj__’_

“Financial Report of the State of South Carolind.” Compensanon_-. ISR
':deferred under the Section’ 40](!\) and 403(b) p]ans isplaced -~ o -
. in trust for the contrlbuung employee: The State hasno Itabthty- '

- for losses under the plans. Employées may ! wnhdrawthe current. :
~value of thelr contnbut]ons when they termmate State -
Employees may “also’ wrthdraw ‘contributions R
. priorto termmatlon if they meet reqmremems spec:F ed by the R

- ".':appllcable p]an P e - e

The Unlversny recorded emp]oyer contrtbutlonsj'_'. ST
expend:tures within the’ apphcable ﬁmctlona] expendifire .
- categories for these'i insurance benefits for active employees o
- the amount of apprommate]y $l4 745 000 for.the yearended: -* .
June 30, 2003: As discussed in Note 8; the. Unwemty paid.. .~
approximitely $6,256,000. appllcable to the-3.15 percent: .= - -
surcharge. included with the employer contributions for. .~
* retirement benefits. These amotinis were remitted to the South. -~ -~
Carolina Retirement Systems for distnbutlon to the Office.of "~ o
o ‘Insurance Serv:ces f'or retlree health and dental msurance_';'__ L
benef"ts e Sl : : Co RN
S Informatlon regardmg the cost of i msurance beneﬁtsf BT
apphcab]e to Umversxty retirees is not avallable By State law, S
- the University ‘has no llablhty for retirement benefits. -
o Aecordlngly, the costofprov:dmg Lhese beneﬁts forrettrees is :
s not included in the accompanying ; financial statenients.



~/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .- - .

NOTE 1, SRR
LONG-TERM L]ABILIT!ES

Long—term ]:ablhty acnvmr for the yeqr ended june 30 2003 W‘]S as follows ¥ R .

" Long Terleab:htles T

G S e Within
“July 1,2002°. - . Additions - Reductions " June 30, 2003 . - ~One Year

" Bonds Paysble, Notes Payable - -

and Capital Lease Obligations: " i s e
".Gcncml Obligaiion Bonds - """ " '§ 9915000 - - 34,165,000 . § 1,615,000 7§ 43465000 - § 3,310,600
. Plant Improvement Bonds - o o0 000 8275000 0 = 0 590,000 0 U 5,685,000 L 615000
"©.; Revenue Bonds > oo S A0 910,000 (s TR T T L 2435000 0 38,475,000 - 2,555,000
‘Athletic’ Facilities Rcvenut. Bunds L 19,960,000 N 07,000,000 -0 B85.000 - L 25,975,000 <. +1,040,000
NG!cSPﬂYﬂbIC T e T 54910 e B00,000 T 49210 s 05700 L T 161723
o Cuptta] Lease Obllgntlons ST 7323302 v T =~ e 954,112 00 6,369,190 001,004,335 -
'---:Towl Bonds NDtes&Cap:ial Lcases_' CLUUBAS3R2120 0 U4LT65,000 0 6,638322°0 0 0 119,674,890 7,696,058 - i
Otherl_mbllillcs S : A ; L Lol S e Sl
- Acerucd compensated absences ' 16,896,000 10,566,648 . 10765648 - 16,697,000 . 11,646,286
. Funds held forothers .~ "0 T 6431035 0L 403,918 1 D 3R934 . T ETE019
- Accounts and retainages payablc T . . | e UAIBTABL e e e e
Arbltrngepaynble S CUUTen327 et 7765 168,092 R Pl PR s o
- Total Other Lisbilities -~ .~ . 23,674,793 "7 - © 10978331 . FL160,105 " 234930197 11,646,286 - SR e
_Tota] Long-Tcrm Lmbnimeq LU $.108213,005. 7 C$052,743331 08 17788427 5 143167909 S 19342344 0 0

s Addltlonal mformatmn reeardmﬂ Bonds and Nutes Payab[e is mciuded in Note 6 Addmonaf mformanon regardmg Capltal
- Lease -Obligations is included in Note 7. . The balance in the long-term liability account “Funds he]d for oihers represents the

AR -'Federal hablhty for reﬁmdable advances under the Perkms Loan proaram o

| :'-:-.NOTE 12.

o CONSTRUCTIOIN COSTS AND COMMITMENTS

'_Capltallzed . . S _ . R |
"The Umversny has obtamed or has plans 10 obtam the necessary fundmL for the acqmsmon construct:on renovatlon and -

' EqupplnE of certain facilities whlch will be capitalized in the applicable capital asset categories upon completion, Management . * |
- “estimates that the Umversny has sufficient resources available and/or future resources identified to satlsf‘aclon]y complete the .
= 'constmci]on of such prajects which are expected to be comp]eted in varying phases over the next 2 or’3 years atan estimated cost .
o of § 97,596, 850. This’ $97. 596, 850. includes :estimated cosls of 581, ,283.850 for capttal pro_lects currently in progress p]us

B $16,313,000 estimated costs for other caplta! projects already in service. Ofthe total estimated cost, $67,847.237 was unexpended
at June 30, 2003. “Of the'total expended through June 30, 2003, the Unwersuy has capltahzed substant:al]y compiete and in use

':_Zpro,}ects in the amount of $93.770, 531, Of the unexpended balance the Unwerstty ‘has remaining commitment balances of 5_:- S

S 825,023 ,125 with certam _property owners, engineering firms, construction contractors, and vendors related 1o, these pro_lects
S Retamaﬁes payab]e on these Capltahzed pm;ects as ofJune 30. "003 was $] 345 650 ' -




' Cap1tal pro_]ects at June 30 2003 whlch constltute constructron m progress that are to be caprtahzed when completed are

l1eted below S

C'o'n'st‘ro'c_tion‘ Costs and Commltments :. i EAEO

.".Project" S

= Approxrmate , ' Amount

Number Pl’Oject e . Cost Expended
L 9604" . Athletic Fac:llt[es Constmctron/Renovailon o $2,195,034 - BBELO43 - o
- 9807 Academic Support Center - .. o D4 220,000 - 1,597
.-/ 95277 - Edisto Center Construcuon!Renovataon _ S 4 000,000 3,037,380
7. 97502 Fike Recreation/Wellness Center Renovauons s AT 215854960 7 D IR 2ILELT Do
. '9793_._'.‘.' Fratérmity Dormrtones Renovation ™ :: o 2475000000 844354
9811 - - Housing Warchouse Consr.mmon o S IS000 T L ORE
0776, _*_Mlcrocreumery " CUCTR0000 U AR086 ]
<9532 .7+ Sandhill REC Oﬁ'cefLeb Bm]dmg CTER00,000 L LIT
9800 © | ResaerchLab Building = /0 o 21,178,320 0 ¢ 2,598.4820
e 255,000 04,5250

" 9801, " Washdown Facility . "~

'S 25639677

g 81283850

e The amount expended mcludes only capitahzed pl‘O_]ECt N
- expenditures and capitalized interest on construction debt for
projects less than 95% complete and notin service at June 30,

o 2003 No noncapltahzed expendltures are mcluded mn these. :
L R IR C'omponent Units™.

totais

: 'Non-Capltahzed

At June.30; 2003 the Umversrty had in progress other_3

'capltal projects which are not be capltahzed when complete

-+ These projects are forreplacements repalrs andfor renavations
_ o exrstmg facilities. Estimated costs on these non—capltahzed L

. projects total $30,305,415. This amount includes costs incurred
to_date of $13,740,867 and" estlmated ‘costs to complete of |
516,564,548, ' The. Umver51ty has “remaining commrtment‘_':_‘ l
.__"batances with certain parties related to these’ projects-of . S
i $3.865. 240. Retamaaes payable on the N capltahze dprojects. _separately chartered corporatlon orgamzed exclusively to .

~-~as of June 30, 2003, was $157,613. The Umversrty anticipates: -

i funding these rojects’ out of current resources, current’ and S
g proj i actwmes are govemed by its- Board of DerCtOI’S

.+ “The Foundation transfers funds earmarked from Prwate-- e
- contributions to the Umversrty to support Umver51ty programs,. .
" suchas scholarshlps fellowships, professorshrps and research; ©
“'and to feimburse the University forany purchases made by the S
“Foundation. These transfers for fiscal year 2003, were recordcd-' T
by the Umversrty as nonoperatmg g]ft revénties totalmg el
©'$8,418,853: The Foundation also reimbursed the: University. I
- $301,152 for salaries for time devoied by UniVersity employees: =
- to'the Foundatron and lransferred royalty payments totalmn_'l; RN
$375 000, P
: Equrpment donated by the Foundanon to the Unwer51ty 5 _
_-'tota!ed $235,036; and was recorded as capltal grants and gifts- o
in the Statement of: Revenues ‘Expenses and Changes in Net_ S
o Assets.. Also recorded as capital grants and gifts upon reéceipt G
were Foundatron donatrons tota!mg $3, 397 078 for University - 0
' __burldmg pro_lects “As of Juné 30, 2003, the Foundation had *

ﬁrture bond issues, state caplta] lmprovement bond proceeds S

- pnvate grﬁs and student fees -

lV'.'NOTE 3.0
" RELATED PARTIES -

 Certaini separateiy chartered legal entities: whose actw:t:es'f

. p ware related to those of the Unwersrty exist prrmanly to provide
financial assistance and other support to the Unwersrty and its
. '_educatlonal program ' ' L

: "The- activities of these entmes are not mcluded in the_

- Umversuy s fi nancial statements However, the Unwersrty S
.. Statements. mc]ude transactlons between the Umversrty ancl its = :
're!atedpartles L AR SR
.- Inconjunction, with its 1mplemematzon of GASB Statement'
S No. 14 and annual]y, management reviews. its re]atronshlpS- .
oo with the related parties, described in this note: The University:
~ "~ excluded these related partiés from the reporting entity becaiise - -

ZCtemson Unlversrty Foundatlon

: it is not ﬁnanmally accountable for them The Govemment “
-Account:ng Standards Board' recently issued Statement No.- *. .0
39, “Deter mmmg ‘Whether C‘ertam Orgam..anorls Are. oo

' With. the’ change in‘the: deﬁmtron of_ TR
S component units some or. all ofthese related partles miay meet R
 the criteria of'a component unit of the Unwersrty reqmrmﬁ a’i
'drscrete presentatmn in the Umversrty financial statements
s begmnmg in-the’ f'scal year ending June 30;2004:- R
Fol]owmg is a more detailed dascussron of each of'the‘;e S
entltles and a summary. of significant transactrons between B
: these entities. and Clemson Umvers:ty L

* The: Clemson Umversrty Foundatron (Foundatron) is'a >

- promote the development and welfare ofC]emson University S
in its educatlonal and screntrt"c purposes.: The Foundat:on 5

o remaining: commitiments of apprommately 3l 000 DOO for .":'. o

Umversny burldmg? pmJecls
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T As referenced mNote 6 on: June 30, 2003 the F oundatlon
. Joaned the Unwersrty $600,000 to construct a bulldmg at the : _
. Clemson Apparel Research Facﬂlty Thls loan is to be repald
s w1th1n 3years. | i
“Asreferenced in Note 3 a 1999 amendment to the South L

: Carohna Code of Laws allowed state-supported universities

- < to lend endowment (and re}ated income) balances on dep051t ;
weat the State Treasurer s Office to entities (hke the Fcundatlon)
whaose existence is pnmanly provxdtng financial a551stance and RE

"-i'NOTE14 : _ o
TRANSACTEONS WITH STATE ENTITIES -
. “The. Umver51ty is granted an_annual appropnatton for - .-
- operatmg purposes as authorized by the General Assembly of
- the State of South Carolina, State appropnatlons are recogmzed X
“asTevenue when received and available. Amounts thatarenot <"
- expended by fiscal year-end lapse and are required to be - -
“returned to the General Fund of the State unless the Umversnty ;' '
- recewes authorization from the Genera! Assembly to carry the_ S
funds over to the next year ' SR : : o
“The onglnal approprlatlon isthe UnwerSIty s base budget' o
‘ ‘amount presented in'the General Funds column of Secttons'
5D and 23 of Part 1A of the 7007 03 Appropnat:on Act. The_ o
.'fo]lowmg isa reconc:lratton of the ortgma] appropnation as.
.enacted by the General Assembly to state. appropnattons.
Tevenue reported in the fi nancml statements fcr the fi scal year
: ended June 30 700_1 ' : : :

_' “other support to the institution and its educatronal program.
At fiscal year end, the amount Joaned, mcludmg income and

ot apprectatlon totaied $49 634 607

_:Ctemson Umversrty Research Foundat:on :
- The Clémson University Research Foundation (CURF) is

o separately chartered corporation established to solicit research b

- grants and contracts, then contract the Unlversny to perform

the research. CURF 5 act:vrtles are governed by 1ts Board of

' '-,D:rectors

The Umversrty perfornls research and development under. .
_performance agreements for CURF, and receives payment for .- "
- all direct and indirect costs whlch are 1ncurred in accordance
" with the. terms of the performance agreements. -
;totallng $4 926,903 from. CURF-were recorded by the
; “University in the Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and -
_-.Changes in Net Assets s operatmg nongovernmental grants
o 'and contracts Grants and contracts recelvable in the Statement

Revenues‘ -

: of Net Assets mcludes $] 124,288 due from CURF at June_'_" S

30,2003. U
.-Also, the UntverSIty made $101 784 in’ capxtal lease o

payments to CURF for lease of a bailding and land and_ e
- $173,9191in operatlng Jease. payrnents for office space ‘(Note -
7). CURF reimbursed the University $185,046 for salaries for .

. time devoted by Umversrty employees to the Clemson o

: --UmversrtyResearchFoundatacn SR I EE

- State App_ropri'a'ti_o_ne '

- Original appropr’i"atinn_ e
*“Less 5% reduction
o Less 3. 73 % reduction - . :
- Stute Budget and Control Board AI!oeatmns o
Employee Base Pay Increases and Related Employee Be|tef'ts I

: “Appropnatlon allacations from the State COrtllTlleIOll on Hlbhu’ Edut_auon

For Academlc Endowrmnt Maich -

ae an CIemsonAnmullun Education TLachers Teachu- Recrutlmtnt ) L
= For Cicmson Agnculture Ldll[:ﬂllﬂn Teachers Tt.ucin.r Saian Supp]emtms. L L e

; Mumcnpnl services
Films and fibers =~ : e
o 'Appropnalton transfer 1o the Mt.r.!tcal Ul‘llverblty of
South Caro]ma (MUSL) for: Agromedtcmc

Toml Stalt. Approprlatton Revenues _:_ S

© . 'Educationat - * " Public.

. - 'and General - Service “Yotal 5
Sy 102,990,114 --f.-$._'47_.1_37.307 _$ 150,127,431 - 0
5271904y 23660650 (7638069 0
(3 736, 343; CL8TTORT) U (5A413,602)
o 224 878 eI 3esasen
gl 133,017 ©
S 10000, 110,000
S e T E2]105 0 s0es
CUURD00000 T e — T 1,000,000
U asses) L 235 g5y
T 96,456,560 8 43,158,702

SUs 130615262

o The Unwers:ty recewed substantta] fundmg from the Comrmssmn an I—hgher Educatton (“CHE ) f or scho]arshtps on behah‘ S o
Soof students that are accounted for as operatlng state grants and contracts " Additional amounts received from CHE are accounted - -

- for as both operating and nonoperatmg revenues, dependmg upon the requtrement of dehverab]es with a current or potenttal - :

s future economic value! “The Umversrty also. receives State funds from various other State agencies for. sponsored research and .- _' e
pubilc service pro_tects Following is a summary of’ amounis recelved from Slate agenc:es for schoEarsh]ps sponsored research

- ~and pub]:c servlce pI‘O_]eClS for the ﬁscal year ended June 30 7003 N
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 Other Amounts Received from State Agencies ~

: Capltal i

Tt DT e T Improvemend 0 o
- QOperating, Nonoperating.. -~ Bond = 7ot
: : : Reveriues -~ ... Revenues. . Proceeds. = - . Total
Reeetved t‘rom the Commlssmn on H:gher IR ‘ : RN :
:.. Edueanon(CHE) S s e T T P T R R
CCLIFE Scho]arshtps e T T R 1R T0,935 T g T§ = LSUI870835
Palmetto Scholarships. - L e e s 6,688,245 5 SRR T L 6,688,249 S
- Need-Based Grants.~ 1645858 o1 e e et ] 6B
" HOPE Scholarships. SLATBRG00 T e s T GRG0
- University Center . : e TE3SE00 e e T L L 5I5 608
-+ Access and Equity Competltlve Grants 5 RISt E Y - (o) E R et 72,701. g
8¢ Experimental Programs to St|mu]ale B el :
5. .- Competitive Research @ . L DR T 400,736 490 736 g
; _'SC Manufacturing Extension Partnershlp L e T RER TR T e e T T DB8ITR
SC Allizrice for Minority Pamolpanon o TR EE IRLPEY: 1 | B I N "_: 46,310
“i. Partnérship Assistance © o T L 3930 T T e T 034,020
Reeelved from the Department of Educatron TR 064 T e s T e T 6 84 :
Received from various other state agencies ©I386,584 . T e e 1,356,584 0
. Cap:tal lmprovement bond proceeds S e s el 10,569,871 710,569,871
SRR SRR U8 29158,199 0§ 012.84EF 10 $10,369,871

_ The Umver51ty provrded no- srgmf' eant servtees free of o
R 'eharge to any State agency durmg the fi scal year however the :
o Umversnty did provnde computer services and: lnformatlon -
L systems development for a fee to other State agencies during. -
.. the fiscal year. Total fees received were $8 996,334; comprised -

o of $4, 405 942 in fees for computer services classified as other: .
 operating revenues, and $4,590,392 in information and systems = .-
'_development f‘ees elassd‘ ed as sa!es and servrces of auxlllary'_ :
; 'enterpnses o
e ‘Also, the Unlversny collected and remltted $1'?D 150 m.' y
e fertlltzertaxes seed certifi cat1on and pesttetderecrlstranon fees - risks.“There ‘were no. mgmfeant reductions in’insurance. . "
o the State General Fund. @ 70 TR A
T Services, reeelved at no cost ﬁom State agem:]es mclude
L _'_':mamtenance of certain aeeountmg records by the ComptrolIer :
_ " General; banking, bond trustee and investmént services from -
< the State Treasurer, legal services from the Attomey General o
L and grants services from the Governor s Office. :

- Other SE‘[’V]CES received at no-cost fromi the vanous oﬂ' ces

: of the State Budget and Control Board include pension plan'; -
L admlmstratlon insurance pians administration, audttserv:ces R
'personnel management assistance in the preparation of the
State Budget; review and approval of ‘certain budget = .
amendments. procurement serv1ces and other eentraltzed' : ltselfassumes substantially all r1sks for the followmg. ‘
- The Umversnty had ﬁnancrel transacttons w:th varlousﬂ
_ State agenc1es durifig ¢ the fiscal year. Significant payments- o
2 were made to d1v1s:ons of the State Budpet and Control Board-_ ;
. for ; pension “and msurance plans employee and' employer
* contributions,. insurance coverage,: office supplies, and. - -
i intéragency mail,: Slgmﬁcant payments were also made for i
- unemployment. and workers’ compensation coverage. for
. _employees to the Employment Security Cominission and Staté .~
: Aec1dent Fund The amounts of ’?003 expendltures apphcable -

'NOTE 15

to related transactlons wrth state ent1t1es are not read1ly R -
avallable o gt ot

'RISK MANAGEMENT

The Unwersrty is- e*(posed to vartous nsks of loss and._'_ e
" majntains State or cominercial insirance coverage foreachof - . -
- those nsl\s Management beheves such coveraae is sufficient - L
" to preclude any significant uninisured losses for the- covered S

" coverage from coverage in the prior year The costs of seftled . "
- claims’ have not e\ceeded thls coverage in any of the past three . ..
'years The Umversnty pays insurance premrums to certain other. '
. State agencies’ and commerelal insurers to cover risks that may -

) occur in norial operations.: The insurers promise (o pay to o

S0 0N behalf ofthe insured for covered economlc losses sustamed ‘
dunng thie pollcv per:od in aecord W1th msurance pol!cy and. S

~benefit program limits. . IR BaDE o

State: manaoement bel;eves lt IS more economical” '

- Ianage certain Tisks internally. and set asrde assets for elatm:' : :
: settlement Several State funds aecumulate assets and the State .

(l) Clalms of State employees for unemployment__-_.

o - Commission); " - R
-2y Claims of covered employees for workers S

o compensatlon ‘benefits for job- related 1]lne55es
-or injuries (State Aceldent Fund); S

- '*and dental  insurance. benef‘ts (Ofl'ee of _' :-f'.
lnsurance Servn:es) and

§ 40840911

. eompensatlon benet'ts (Employment Seeunty-;_:-- LI L

o (3.')" Claims of covered public employees for health snee



- cocean marme coveraae

. NOIES IUFINANGIAL SIAIEMERTS - -

(4) C]auns of covered pub]lc employees for }ong-
_'term dlsablht_y and group- -life i insurance beneﬁts
(Oﬂ' ice of Insurance Serv1ce5) S

_ Employees elect heakth coverage through erther a health__:
v 'malntenanee orgamzanon or through the State’s se]f-msured -

o plan. All of the other coverages listed above are through the -

e apphcable State self—msured p]an except dependent and_
S optional life premiums are remitted to commercial carriers. .
- The Unwersrty and other entities pay premlums to the-_

.' 3.State 5 Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF) which issues pohc1es

accumulates asseis to cover the Tisks of loss, and pays.claims
s 1ncurred for covéred losses related to the foIlowmgUmversrty Fi s
“°©“University has not reported an estimated claims loss =~ .

: ;__..-"expend:ture and the related liability at June 30,2003, based =~ -
.on the requlrements of GASB Statement No. 10 and No.30,

[2S which state that-a hablhty for claims must be reported only if Py
tnformatlon prlor ‘toissuance of the’ ﬁnancral statements .- ¢
indicates that it is probable that an asset has been 1mpa|red or, i

- ‘a liability has been incurred on or before June 30, 2003, and Rt

Lt the amount of the loss is reasonably estrmab]e SRR R

‘In management’s opinion, claims losses in excess of .

1nsurance coverage dre unlikely . and, if incurred, would be’ L

".:'1n51gmf1cant to the University’s financial position.. "~

. Furthermore, there is no evidence of asset impairment.or other "~
i mformatlon to mdlcate that a loss expenditure and. hablhty _ _

. should be recorded at year—end Therefore o loss acemaE has B

g _' been recorded ‘ P o S

assets activmes andfor events

L _,:'j."(l) Theﬁ of damage to or destructlon of assets S
(2} Real property, its contents, and other equipment; |

(3 Motor. vehlcles alrcraft and watercraft (miand_

N mar:ne)

'(4) Torts; :

1 (5) Busmessmterruptlons
-(6) Natural disasters; and

Ty Medical maEpractrce cla1rn5 agamst coveredf'

- mf'rrnartes and employees

e The IRF isa selfii msurer and purchases remsurance to

L obtam certaln services and: 5pec1ahzed coverage’ and to limit

" losses | in. the areas of property, b or]er and machinery, automobde

. liabitity; and medlcai professrona] liability insurance.Also, e R T R

i -the iIRF purchases reinsurance for catastrophic property-and. . © - -7. R
o medlcalprofessmnai liability insurance. ‘Reinsurance permits - *

,"partral recovery of losses from reinsurers, but the IRF remains. -

'_-prlmarlly liable. The IRF purchases insurance for aircraft and

| ‘The IRF ) rates are detem‘uned_ S

actuarrailv o

_ “State naenmes and other ent;ties are the pnmary.‘..
S pamcrpants n the State sHealth and Disablllty]nsurance Fund
-~ -and in the IRF. ' - ‘ -

_ i The Umversrty obtams coveraae throueh commercla]
_ '_rnsurers for emp!oyee fi dehtv bond insurance. All employees
are covered for -$500, 000 for Commerelal Crlme

- "_":coverane 1ncludes the followmg

' .(]_) Blanketemp]ovee dlshonesty, o

'.(2) Forgexy/a]teranons A
L +{3) Theft; dtsdppearance ofmonevand securrt}, :
S ) Robbery and safe burgiary, ;
' (5) ‘Premises burglary;
.+ (6) Computer fraud and
L '.'('7) Premlses theﬁ

Thrs

L In addmon the Chsef Busmess Oﬁ' icer is covered for' DR

'$200 000 under a public official bond, and the postmasteris .
" covered under.a performance bond for $75,000. Both the .
Coordlnator for Revenue and Recelvables and Assocrate : .
"._ComptroI]er-Related Organlzatrons are covered :hy Bk
- *$2,000,000 bond. A $2,000,000 bond also covers the Dlrector S

of Fmance and Adrnlmsl:rat:on forAdvancement " R
" The Umversrty has’ recorded insurance premmm I
__expenditures and expendrtures for deductlbles in apphcable- SRR
functional expendlture cateeones R TIRPRU S L
...~ The Uru\fersrty has not transferred the pomon of the ns!\ S
: of ioss related to insurance pohcy deductibles, and pohcyhmlts ¥

for all coverage to a State or- commerclal insurer, . The

' -NOTE 16
'-CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION

- The' Umversny is 1nvo]ved in a- number of legal ﬁ

proceedrngs and claims with various parties whrch arosein o
“the normal course of business and cover a wide range of matters.. _
Because, in the opinion of management and counsel, the risk. ~ -~
of materlal loss in excess of insurance coverage for these items ..
“is remote, the outcome of the leaal proceedings and c]alms is o
oot expected to havea malerlal effect on the financial position - . il
of the Umversny Therefore an est:mated hablllty has not
- ‘been recorded. © =1 ¢ - : R o
“The various federal programs admlmstered by the - EINT
' 'Umversny for fiscal year 2003 ‘and pnor years are subject {0 L
'-exammatlon by the federat grantor agencies. ‘At the present:
-+ time; amounts, if any, which may be due federal grantors have -
- not been determined but the University believes that any such
. 'amounts in the agg regate would not have a material adverse . -
- effect on  the financial position of the. Unlversny Therefore :
) _an estlmated loss has not been recorded :



 NOTE1s.
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NOTE 17
OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCT!ON

Operatmg expenses by ﬁmctlonal c1a551f catlon for the year ended I une 30 7003 are smmnanzed as fo]]ows: '

* Compensation”

- Services

Scholarshlps

. and Emptoyee evand o T : and: i
SRR - Benefits: . '~ Supplies. .7 Utilities Depreciat:on Fellowsh:ps. wooToll e -
- Instruction “_. Sran, 842 570 © § 16,631,580 $Lo041672 8T e 280 129,963 5119546185
_Reseasch ' o oo 72,622,532 0 27,894,505 L 991513 Tl o 27R0840 101,787,624
Public Service™ . ST U 41,201,685 015,165,989, 1106 099 L0 e T 07080 57,501,753
Academic Support. U 24,102,566 6,830,530 0 7250720 e o T T .j_'31357 168 -
.+ Student Services - j S TLTBA3B6. T SB0E23Y L 284S L e 1500';-'---' 17,841,572
. Instititional Suppori - o 14gano 3,007,207 S219301 e BT T
Opcrﬂ!wnand el L e U R T T e s e
* Mainteriance of Plant . Co 16 796 332 16,074,372 : 3,0[}9,375 S =T 35 RR0099
Schoiarshtps and Fe[Eowsh;ps I T » R Py J . I S S CU9,799,618 7 - ORTILISA o
‘Auxiliary Services .21 061, 197 . 3, 913 0004294564 L e s 060 461
: Deprccaatlon B L _' et e 22 358,905 T 22358005
Tota] il §7 304,258,839 $‘:_124,099,7()9_ SU11L542,140° § 22358905 8. _10,238,04*: s '472,497 638 e
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS o DONOR- RESTRICTED ENDOWMENTS

.. On August 19, 2003, $28,500, 000 in C]emson Unwersrty
'-Revenue Bands; Senes 2003, 'were sold and. dellvered on

_Auoust 79, 2003. The Senes 2003 Bonds were lssued for the" 3
o purpose of prowdmg f'unds together w:th other ﬁmds available. :
. to the Umvers:ty necessary to (i) pay 4 portion of the cost of
 renovating certain residence hall f‘acxlltres of the Umversrty,:
(i) capttal:ze a portion of the interest on the Series 2003 Bonds .-
to accrue through May 1, 2005, and(iii) pay costs of issuance ;-
/' of the Series 2003 Bonds ‘The Series 2003 bonds were issued
-+ under the authorlty of the Constitution and laws of the State of -
- South Carolina, mc]udmn' Title 59, Chapter 147 of the Code
“of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended a Bond'- :

o Reso!utlon ad0pted by the Board ofTrustees of the Umvemty' _' and is reported in the Statement ot‘Net Assets as resmcted for : '

“on December 1, 19974 Series Resolution adopted by the Board - - expendabie schoiarshtps and fellowshlps

of Trustees: of the University on October 25, 2002, and'a :
resolution of the State Budget and Contro] Board of South i

o - Carolina adopted Decernber-10, 2002."

., v In Ju]y 2003 thie memor'mdum of understandmg between, :

i C]emson University and the Clemson University Foundation : ©: = -
: reoardmg the Toan of éndowment funds was modified. The. . "

University. is now prohibited from requestma a return of the

e loaned ﬁ_mds lf the cumulatwe mvestment return is negatlve

Ifa donor has not prov;ded spec:lf' ¢ instiictions; state law

- 'permlts the Board of Trustees to authorize for EXpEl’ldltU]’E the
et apprec:atlon (reallzed and unrealized) of the mvestrnents” L
. of endowrnent funds.” Any net apprecnatlon that is spent is -
. required to be spent for the purposes for w}nch the endowment ;
: was, estabhshed : :

“In accordance with the spendmﬂr pohcy adopted by the' ‘ .

-:_Clemson Umversﬂ:y Board of Trustees in-1998; endowment— (s
derived prograin expendttures are based on the endowment.'_ e
:-”canymg value from the previous year at a percentage set by - o
~'the Board, For fiscal year 2003, this rate was'4,75%. AtJune: .
- 30, 2003 netappreelatlon of $556 609 is available to be spent; |~




..~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - =

- NOTE 20. shn e
DE_TAILS OF RESTRICTED ASSETS

The purposes and amoumq of Umverqny Restncted Aqsets are aq fo]]an

”'__f.'_bétails_ begé)'ttic'té_d_As:sé'ts'

._'Currcnt._ ) s
Cash and cashequwnlenls Pl s S e e T
.- As specified by sponsors/donors . T Cmnle e T g 4,133,161
. ...University administered loans .00, __ﬁ e e e L T G RAG
.+~ Payment of maturing debt . ¢/ L TR T LR R 1,338
.* . Bond proceeds and other amounts restncted for cnpna] pmjects_' e e D AR T92,095
R Fundshcld for others - il I e e e 370,690

:_Ntmcurrem' - : AN
Cashanduﬂshequwalcnts T T e T e T e e e e T T
“Endowments . -7 0 S e e e 0L T40,382
Federat Perluns Lnan ngram R P s SR e LR PR 1,339,018 -
CUE 13,079,400 -

":_"S=iudcn'l.l_,nanszRéceivable:' P P BT T e e e e
.. Federal Perkins Loan Program LT T e S T 6,985,605

'--f"-NOTE 21, : -
"'-_INFORMATION FORINCLUSION
IN THE STATE GOVERNMENTWIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

“Clemson’ Umvers:tv 5 transactions are rep(med in.the ngher Education Fund an enterpnse fund, of the State of South

'ECarolma Following is mformanon needed to present the Umvers:ty s busmess lype actwrl]es in the State S govemmem—wade _ S

o Siatement of Actlvmes

5 o . T T R SR RN '_"-‘I'ncrea's_él'_ .
_Statement ofActivmes e e T 008 0 ) 2002, 0 (Decrease)

"+ Charges for services UL e s 2BA3T39N3 6 246720.869 8 ATESI044
- Operating grarits and mmnbununs L e T R0 867,467 L 67,533,626 -0 (7,966,159)
[~ Capital grants and cnntnbulmns T T e e B TG9T o P Red 354 D 4310,643 0
e Lessiexpenses Tl T A{79247.044) U (MBS ALTGRT) o (33.836263) 0
" Nel program révenue (L\p:.nsx.) LT e T 129,131.567) '(1'19 292, 33?)'_- 161265
- -Guluaircvnnucs R e BT T e T e T T o
Contributions to pcrmantm uldowmcms ST e 20,539 L T "3'\ -H() ';_ L (714 9[}1) .‘
.- Transfers: LT B T PR PR P L -
‘itatt. dppropr:almm L L S0 139,615,262 ='I*‘r‘\ 4#3 023 o g {1_3,837,761)
" Capital improvement bond pmct:r;:ds Do T 10,569,871 0 D 0 12,482,232 L T (1.912,360) D
_ " Less: transfers out to slale .'mcnclcs/fundb S (549, 158) e (B 46T 0 (130,697) <
Total g generial rwunuu and transfus L . = L Sl ]49;65_6,504 C 6T, TS (18,095,720}
Change in net assets 00 L SR e 20524937 0 P 38450302 00 (17,934,455)
‘Nel gssits - beginning 0 7 oS ot s T T 406,691,999 368,332,607 0 38,459,392 -
Net aissets - eriding = UL e 8 497,216,936 8 406.698999 8 20524937
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE

For the Year Ended June 30,

{amounts expressed in thousands) (percent of total revenus)
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Revenues
Operating Revenues:
Student Tuition and Fees
{net of scholarship allowances) $ 111,346 § 97269 3 85,753 23.0% 21.3% 18.8%
Federal Grants and Contracts 62,687 51,222 43,783 13.0% 11.2% 8.6%
State Grants and Contracts 20,158 19,885 20,090 6.0% 4.3% 4.4%
Local Grants and Contracts 1,319 1,103 837 0.3% 0.2% 0.2%
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 10,140 8,636 7,100 2.1% 1.9% 1.6%
Sales and Services of Educational
and Other Activities 9,675 9,481 7,757 2.0% 2.1% 1.7%
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises
(net of scholarship Allowances) 60,049 58,158 59,647 12.4%  12.7% 12.9%
Other Operating Revenues 13,204 12,156 11,310 2.7% 2.7% 2.5%
Total Operating Revenues § 297,578 & 257,930 § 236,277 61.5% 564% 51.7%
Non Operating Revenues:
State Appropriations § 139615 5 155433 5% 165918 28.9% 34.0% 36.3%
Federal Appropriations 11,492 9,772 16,260 2.4% 2.1% 3.6%
Gifis 23,232 26,892 30,318 4.8% 5.9% 6.6%
Interest Income 7,587 7.405 8.048 1.6% 1.6% 1.8%
Endowment Income 2,563 (1,788 {439) 0.3% (0.4)%  (0.1)%
Other Non Operating Revenues 1,490 1.423 519 0.3% 0.4% 0.1%
Total Non Operating Revenues 185.979 199,157 220,624 38.5% 43.6% 48.3%
Total Revenues $ 483,357 § 457,087 % 456,901 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Note: Due to reporting formal and definition changes prescribed by Governmental Standards Statement No. 34 and 335, only information for Fiscal years
2001-2003 1s available.

Source: Clemson University Financial Statements.



SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY USE

For the Year Ended June 30,

(amounts expressed in thousands) (percent of tolal revenue)
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Expenses
Operating Expenses:
Compensation and Employce Benefiis $304,259  $292,247 % 271,332 G63.5%  67.5% 63.1%
Services and Supplies 124,100 108,322 113,665 2598 25.0% 26.4%
Utilities 11,542 12,006 11,198 2.4% 2.8% 2.6%
Depreciation 22,359 19,158 18,694 4.7% 4.4% 4.4%
Scholarships and Fellowships 10,238 9,090 9,268 2.1% 2.1% 2.2%
Total Operating Expenses 472,498 440,823 424,157 98.6% 101.8% 98.7%
Non Operating Expenses:
Interest on Capital Asset Related Debt 5321 4,300 3,970 1.1% 1.09% 0.9%
Gain/Loss on Disposal of Capilal Assets 1,094 (12,621) 1,226 0.2% (2.9% 0.3%
Refunds to Grantors 335 289 340 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Total Non Operating Expenses 6,750 (8,032) 5,545 1.4% (1.8)% 1.3%
Total Expenses % 479248 % 432,791 § 429,702  100.0% 100.,0%  100.0%

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

For the Year Ended June 30,

(amounts expressed in thousands} (percent of tofal revenue)
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Expenses:

Instruction % 119,546 % 114,357 % 107,677 249%  264% 25.1%
Research 101,788 93,953 87,659 21.2%  21.7% 20.4%
Public Services 57,502 56,508 56,571 12.0% 13.0% 13.2%
Academic Support 31,367 28 811 22,749 6.5% 6.7% 5.3%
Student Services 17,842 17,614 15,757 3.7% 4.1% 3.7%
Institutional Support 18,074 17,287 17,983 3.8% 4.0% 4.2%
Operation and Mainlenance of Plant 35,880 28,167 28,529 7.5% 6.5% 6.6%
Scholarships and Fellowships 9,871 8,682 8,894 2.1% 2.0% 2.1%
Auxiliary Enterprises 38,269 56,286 539,644 122%  13.0% 13.8%
Interest on Capital Deht 5,321 4,300 3,979 1.1% 1.0% 0.9%
Depreciation 22,359 19,158 18,694 4.7% 4.4% 4.3%
Gain/Loss on Disposal of Capilal Assets 1,094 (12,621} 1,226 0.2% (2.3)% 0.3%
Refunds to Grantors 335 289 340 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%

Total Expenses 5 479,248 % 432,791 § 429702 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Note: Due to reporting format and definition changes prescribed by Governmental Standards Statement No. 34 and 35, only information for fiscal years 2001-
2003 is available.

Source: Clemson University Financial Statements.
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UNDERGRADUATE AVERAGE ANNUAL TUITION AND FEES

At Doctoral-Level Public Insitutions

L.ast ten years

Institution - Resident

Michigan State University
Clemson University
Purdue

Univ of California-Davis
Texas A& M

VPILand Stale Universily
Mississippi State Univ
Towa State Univ

Georgia Tech

North Carolina State
Auburn University

Institution - Non Resident

Michigan State University
Clemson University '
Purdue

Univ of California-Davis
Texas A& M

VPI and State University
Mississippi State Univ
{owa State Univ

Georgia Tech

North Carolina State
Auburn University

Source: University of Wyoming - telephone surveys, mail surveys, and web sites.

* These figures are for undergraduate first-time, full-time students with an academic year of 24 semester hours or 36 quarter hours

~54 ~

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
$5,022 $4,632 $4,256 $4,120 $4,032 $3,944 $3,834 $3,725 $4,409 $4,260
. 5,834 4,490 3,590 3470 3,344 3252 3,112 3,112 3,036 2,954
5,580 4,164 3,872 3,724 3564 3352 3208 3,056 2884 2,696
4630 4,595 4,072 4034 4,153 4332 4262 4,174 4099 3,712
3,949 3,127 2,809 2,640 2419 2337 1,977 2011 1653 1,526
3,936 3,664 3,640 3,620 4305 4,147 4,131 4,087 3951 3,812
3,874 3,586 3,117 3,017 3,017 2731 2,631 2,591 2561 2474
4,110 3,442 3,132 3,004 2,874 2,766 2,666 2574 2471 2,352
3,616 3454 3,308 3,008 2991 2901 2685 2457 2343 2,265
3,827 3,302 2814 2414 2364 2200 2200 1,732 1,584 1,389
3,784 3,260 3,050 2,895 2,760 2,565 2,355 2,250 2,100 1,950
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
$12,276 $11,310 $10,388 $10,042 $9,806 $9,596 $9,486 $9,209 $10,994 $10,620
12,932 11,284 9,784 9456 9,100 8,676 8316 8316 8116 7,896
16,260 13,872 12,904 12,348 11,784 11,184 10,636 10,128 9,556 8,848
17.009 15,669 14,686 14,208 13,727 13,316 12,656 11,873 11,798 11,411
9,181 8,191 7,969 7,824 7,531 7473 7,113 6,619 5943 5606
13,552 12,488 12,128 11,844 11,521 11,111 10,783 10,739 10404 9,680
8,780 8,125 7,065 6119 6,119 5551 5451 5411 5021 4,933
12,802 10,776 9,974 9,564 9,152 8808 8480 8,192 7,731 7,386
13,986 12,350 10,826 10,350 9,921 9,621 8946 7,638 6933 6,765
15,111 13,294 11,980 11,580 11,530 10,732 10,732 9,848 9,110 8,431
11,084 9,780 9,150 8,685 8,280 7,695 7.065 6750 6300 5,830



Undergraduate Tuition and Fees - Resident - 2003

Clemson University, $5,834

Undergraduate Tuition and Fees - Non Resident - 2003

Clemson University,
$12,932
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SCHEDULE OF BOND COVERAGE

Last Ten Fiscal Yeurs
{amounts in thousands)

State Institution Bonds
Tuition and Total Revenue

Fiscal Year Matriculation  Available for Debt Service Requirements Coverage
Ended June 30, Fees Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio
2003 % 6,876 $ 6,876 $ 1,615 § 1,530 $ 3,145 2.19
2002 4,843 4,843 085 555 1,540 3.14
2001 4,325 4,325 930 608 1,538 2.81
2000 3,568 3,568 8§75 658 1.533 2.33
1999 2,983 2,983 835 704 1,539 1.94
1998 2,880 2,880 790 747 1,337 1.87
1997 2,826 2,826 365 353 718 3.94
1996 2,789 2,789 1,095 422 1,517 1.84
1995 2,797 2,797 920 278 1,198 2.33
1694 2,574 2,574 870 330 1,200 2.15

Plant Improvement Bonds

Special Total Revenue
Fiscal Year Student Available for Debt Service RequiremenisCoverage
Ended June 30, Fee Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio
2003 $ 1,002 $ 1,002 F 590 ¥ 266 $ 856 1.17
2002 1177 1,177 570 292 862 1.37
2001 1,204 1,204 515 324 839 1.43
2000 1,114 1,114 485 354 839 1.33
1999 1,160 1,160 390 428 818 1.42
1998 1,134 1,134 370 327 697 1.63
1997 1,108 1,108 345 571 916 1.2]
1996 1,099 1,699 330 591 921 .19
1695 1,062 1,062 310 609 919 1.16
1994 1,075 1,075 295 625 920 1.17

Source: Clemson University Office of Fiscal Affairs.

~ 56 ~



Athletic Facilities Revenue Bonds

Net Total Revenue
Fiscal Year Athletic  Admissions Available for Debt Service Regquirements Coverage
Ended June 30, Revenues Fee Debt Service  Principal Interest Total Ratio
2003 $ 2,850 § 1,449 $ 4,299 $98s § 871 51,856 2.32
2002 2,527 833 3.360 1,025 823 1,848 1.82
2001 1,088 771 1,859 0 0 0 1.00
Revenue Bonds
Defined
Net Revenue  Total Revenue
Fiscal Year Available for Available for Debt Service RequirementsCoverage
Ended June 30, Debt Service Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio
2003 $12,141 512,144 52435 $2,137 §4,592 2.64
2002 10,760 10,760 2,445 2.290 4,735 2.27
2001 9,116 9.116 2.340 2,398 4,738 1.92
2000 8.437 8,437 2,340 1,235 3,575 136
1999 6,848 0,848 2.325 1,339 3,664 1.87
1998 7.392 7,392 1.395 467 1,862 3.97
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ADMISSIONS, ENROLLMENT AND DEGREE STATISTICS

Last Ten Academic Years

Admissions-Freshman
Accepted as a Percentage
of Applications
Enrolled as a
Percentage of Accepted
SAT Scores-Total
Verbal
Math
South Carolina
Average SAT Score-Total

Enroliment
Undergraduate and
Graduate FTE
Undergraduate and
Graduate Headcount
Percentage of Men
Precentage of Women
Percentage of Black
Percentage of White
Percentage of Other

Degrees Earned
Bachelor's
Master's
Doctoral

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
422% 523% 63.8% 68.2% 69.0% 73.6% 77.6% 79.8% 698% 652%
51.8% 42.6% 454% 44.6% 41.9% 42.1% 41.2% 41.3% 410% 43.8%
1205 1,191 1,172 1,138 1,145 1,140 1,128 1,042 1,048 1,052
587 584 575 569 564 571 557 483 485 487
618 607 597 589 581 563 5T 359 563 565
981 974 966 554 951 955 954 844 838 838
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
15,620 15,800 16,053 15,685 15258 15087 14978 14.847 15,148 15588
16,876 17,101 17.465 16,982 16,685 16,396 16,526 16318 16250 16,614
54.6% 34.6% 53.8% 34.1% 353.1% 53.0% 53.6% 53.8% 345% 33.7%
45.4% 454% 46.2% 459% 46.8% 47.0% 46.4% 462% 455% 44.3%
7.1%  74%  T.1%  73%  69% 75% 7.6% 7.7% 80% 8.0%
85.0% 85.0% B85.8% 835.5% 86.2% 86.0% B859% 86.1% B833% 85.4%
798 7.6%  T.0%  72% 6.7% 65% 65%  63% 67%  6.6%
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
2,973 2,823 2,723 2565 31 2463 2,530 2,513 2466 2735
808 764 B87 795 896 910 926 o089 1,082 1,166
121 121 100 114 (213 110 90 125 96 116

Source: Clemson University Office of Institutionat Research



Freshman Applied, Accepted and Enrolled

14,000 4
12,000 -
10,000 4
8,000 - & Apoplications
' E Accepted
6,000 [ Enralied

2002 2001 2000 1999 1598 1997 1996 1994 1993

Headcount Total

16,600
14,000

12,600

10,600

B,000

6,000
4,000

2,000

2002 2001 2000 1859 1998 1997 1296 885 1884 1993

Degrees Earned

3,500
3,000 4
2,500 -

B Bachelor's
il Masier's
& Roctoral

2,000 -
1,500 1

1,000 -
500 -

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1895 1994 1993
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FACULTY, STAFF AND ADMINISTRATORS STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Yeass

Faculty*
1,200 - 60.0%
1,000 - 50.0%
Part-time
800 - 40.0% .
Full-time
600 30.0% —— Percentage Tenured
i a 0
400 - 20.0%
200 - 10.0%
- + 0.0%

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

*IPEDS definition of Insteuctional Faculty.

Full-Time and Part-Time Staff

3,500 -

gParttime

Fuli-time

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1905 1994

Source: Clemsen University Office of Institutional Research,
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Students Per Faculty/Staff

@ Students Per Faculty
Students Per Staff Member

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Average Annual Faculty Salary

$70,000 -
$60,000 -
$50,000 -|
$40,000 -
$30,000 -
$20,000 -
$10,000 - |

$0 -5

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
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